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Financial Results

| am pleased to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012. During the year, the Group achieved a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties (under Continuing
operation) of HK$362.5 million, representing an increase of approximately
30.0% compared with the previous financial year. The increase was mainly
due to increase of rental income from ISQUARE compared to the previous

financial year.

Valuation gains on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2012 amounted to HK$207.8 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$580.4 million compared with the previous financial year.
The valuation gains will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.

With the inclusion of the discontinued operation (see note 5 to the financial
statements), the Group recorded a profit attributable to equity shareholders
of HK$250.9 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity

shareholders of HK$641.1 million for the previous financial year.

Business Review and Commentary on Financial
Results

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing a number of retail,
entertainment, food and beverage establishments. Rental income from
iISQUARE amounted to approximately HK$452.7 million for the financial year
ended 31 March 2012, representing an increase of approximately 20.4%
compared with the previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March
2012 was approximately 98.5% compared with approximately 92.3% at
31 March 2011.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in
Guangzhou in the People’s Republic of China, continued to generate rental

income during the year.
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Capital Structure and Liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2012 was HK$10,364.4 million,
compared with HK$10,158.6 million at 31 March 2011.

During the year under review, Associated International Hotels Limited, a
50.01% owned subsidiary, repaid HK$1,000 million being substantial part
repayment of the bank loan granted by the facility agreement entered on
20 October 2006. The facilities have, subject to certain conditions, been
extended for two additional years. At 31 March 2012, the outstanding bank
loan was HK$200 million and the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.9% (calculated

as total bank loan over total equity).

Outlook

The external economic environment remains uncertain and the management
continues to evaluate its impact on the leasing market. The Group will
adopt appropriate leasing strategies to enhance the leasing performance of
iISQUARE. Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is expected rental income
from ISQUARE would generally benefit from increased rental arising from the

renewal of certain existing tenancies.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of shareholders of the Company will be held on
Wednesday, 5 September 2012. For the purpose of determining the identity
of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 3 September 2012 to Wednesday, 5 September 2012, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
All transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on
Friday, 31 August 2012.
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Dividend

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.20 per
share for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$0.17 per share). As
the Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share during the
year (2011: Nil), the total distribution will be HK$0.30 per share for the
year (2011: HK$0.17 per share). Subject to the shareholders’ approval on
the proposed final dividend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(*AGM”), the register of members of the Company will be closed for the
purpose of determining entitlement to the said final dividend from Tuesday,
11 September 2012 to Thursday, 13 September 2012, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Monday,
10 September 2012. The proposed final dividend will be paid on Friday,
28 September 2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members on Thursday, 13 September 2012 following approval at the AGM.

Staff

At 31 March 2012, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iSQUARE, was 39
(81 March 2011: 129) and the related costs incurred during the year were
approximately HK$23.0 million (31 March 2011: HK$29.1 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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iISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This 31-storey
complex provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping

podium, cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
Theatre. iISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops and carparking spaces. The

Centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholders and is therefore
committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. To
accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices and procedure,

and identified and formalised appropriate measures and policies.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) which
were then in force except that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer were not separated and performed by two individuals, which was

inconsistent with code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

In respect of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company. The Board of Directors considers that the current structure
does not have any adverse effect on the Company and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and

efficiently.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors of the Company of
any non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

year ended 31 March 2012.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2012 comprised the

following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Mr Lau Wah Sum (resigned with effect from 1 January 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr Lau Wah Sum, one-third of the Board

members are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family own business outside the Group together.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group.
It formulates objectives, overall strategies and business plans, and
oversees the financial and management performance of the Group. For
efficient operation, certain functions and authorities are delegated to the
management, which include implementation of objectives, strategies and
plans adopted by the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. The respective functions of the Board and the management have
been laid down and set out in writing. In spite of it, the Board takes the

ultimate responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012 on a going concern basis, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and, other than the new and revised accounting policies
which are either effective for the year under review or early adopted by the
Group as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them
consistently with those applied to the financial statements of the previous
financial year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates
which are reasonable.

The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 42 to 43.

Seven board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the year ended 31 March 2012. Individual
attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HEEBAY FERHESRRY
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
BRERE

General Meeting

Exeem
Board Meetings

HITEE Executive Directors

EEE LA (FE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/7 1/1
BB (BIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 7/7 1/1
EIRESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 5/7 1/1
fopryealinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 7/7 1/1
fEIRIe/ME Miss Cheong Chong Ling 7/7 1/1

FHITEE Non-executive Directors

il Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 77 1/1
BIFER S Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 5/5 1/1
B ITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

ARG &% Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 77 1/1
hZEHEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 7/7 1/1
HHS T E Mr Tse Pang Yuen 7/7 1/1

i AERELEEBHIARRBEMITESR B IR _-F
——F-A-BEEM - EEER  AREHRERD
REFZGEHRR—RBERAE »

Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum resigned from his position as a Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1 January 2012. During his tenure, five board

meetings and one general meeting were held.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year under review,
all Directors were furnished with quarterly memorandum/circular so as
to regularly refresh their knowledge in relation to legal and regulatory
obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest development on
the regulatory and legal requirements, the company secretary provided
updates to the Board as and when necessary. In addition, the Company
had also formalised the policy on arranging and funding Directors’ training.
The Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training sessions,
seminars, forums and conferences with all related expenses reimbursable by

the Company, subject to the Company’s policy.

Non-executive Directors and

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent Non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and audit committee, each with its written
terms of reference. Each committee is required to report back to the Board
and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and recommendations

unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its ability to do so.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain Directors
and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at competitive level. In
order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration committee.
Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his associates is

allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Tse
Pang Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a
member of the committee with effect from 1 January 2012). The main duties
of the remuneration committee are to assist the Company in formulating
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior management;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals; to
determine the remuneration packages of individual Executive Director
and senior management; to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors; to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group; to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment; and to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct. Details of the
remuneration committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the websites of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEx”) and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.

Remuneration for Executive Directors and senior management is determined
by the remuneration committee on the recommendations of the chief
executive officer (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong whose remuneration
package is determined by the remuneration committee alone) on an
annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the review of remuneration for Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors annually. For all other staff,
it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration packages on the

recommendations of their respective department heads on an annual basis.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages for senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market condition, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 29 to the financial
statements on pages 116 to 117, the Group does not have any long-term

incentive scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the remuneration committee held two
meetings, at which, the committee reviewed and made recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration structure; considered and fixed
the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of both the

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:

HEEBRY FEREEEHRH
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

BEStE(ZESFE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 2/2
Rz Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 2/2
SRR SE A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
hEHEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/9

# AEREEA T —F-A-BETHESTMZ
SERE - HEER  ARFABRMAFHEE S

il

% 0

B
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Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of the remuneration committee with
effect from 1 January 2012. During his tenure, two remuneration committee

meetings were held.



TEERHE Corporate Governance Report

EEEBETNZERS @)
REZEE
REZEEN_T——_F=A+AHHEMKZ ' IH
MERITES R = 2B T AR o KB
BREEBEAE(EEBRTE)  EEMEL -
BTk - B AT T S -

REZEENIERERRANEFTERE - AK
NAA (BYRiEE - MBMERR)  YHEASER
AZ ARREEAEE SR EANBER - X
BIUFATEFHNBLIN - WEASEEROHA
TREFENE  YHEERAL/REESNK
REMEERESSFLES  REEFRAEX
EHNREREFHIFB(LETEFEMITHE
BIRNEEEFHES - RAZEeNREHE
EFAMAEENNBE  YEBHRARALR
RS RRFAAEESRAARMER
B RAFER  REZEEWELFREMNEE -

ERAZEERIA  HARKRBEOHESS
HIT-RBE-Z-——_F=A=+—HUIEMKF
ER - EEERNARARRRLEEEENESRE
HEZFBMRHZEEENEAER - TETHR
NEFENES  YRRIBERLIIFRTERN
ABEEBYE EZRNRENZTEZZE
BRI ARET BORTE

X

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee was established on 15 March 2012 comprising
two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The members are Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman),
Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and
Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive officer. Details of
the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out in the terms of
reference. The said terms of reference are published on the websites of the
Company and the HKEx and are also available upon written request to the
company secretary. During the year, the nomination committee did not hold

any meeting.

Before formation of the nomination committee, its role and functions were
performed by the Board. During the financial year ended 31 March 2012,
the Board made recommendations and provided biographical details to
shareholders of the Company on Directors standing for re-election. The
Chairman from time to time reviewed the composition of the Board with
particular regard to the number and the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Board also reviewed and determined the

suitability and terms for re-appointment of Directors.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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Directors

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

For re-appointment of a Director, the Board considers not only the skills and
experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the Company,
SO as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the Board. The
process for re-election of a Director is pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.

Among the seven board meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2012, two of the meetings covered issues in relation to re-appointment
of Directors. Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board

meetings is set out below:

HEEBRY FEREEEHRH
Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HITEE Executive Directors

SEVRIR S () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BIEMEE(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
fEmE S Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2
epuyeabinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
SEIRIS/MA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FITEE Non-executive Directors

ik i ta s Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BlER L & Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 2/2
BUHRITEE Independent Non-executive Directors

IEESES e Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEFEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
HMS AL Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2

i BEREANHERDREAESRETNERES

SRABEHE -

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5

Note: The attendance of Mr Lau Wah Sum is made by reference to the number of

relevant board meetings held during his tenure.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; to approve remuneration and terms of
engagement, and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal
in respect of external auditor; to review and monitor external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of their audit process;
to discuss with external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement policy
on engagement of external auditor to supply non-audit services; to oversee
financial reporting system and internal control procedure; to review financial
information of the Group; to review arrangements employees can use in
confidence to raise concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation and follow-
up action; and to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with external auditor. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of
reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEx and

are also available upon written request to the company secretary.

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director. The members are Mr Chow Wan
Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Tse Pang
Yuen and Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam (Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of

the committee with effect from 1 January 2012).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the audit committee met three times,
at which the audit committee made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the external auditor, considered and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; reviewed the
half-year and annual financial statements of the Group, including integrity
and significant financial reporting judgements contained therein, before
submission to the Board for approval; discussed with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit before commencement; reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and met the external

auditor without the presence of executive board members of the Company.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee also took initiative in agreeing with the external auditor
on the scope and extent of interim review before commencement and
ensuring the Company’s compliance with its policy on engagement of

external auditor to supply non-audit services to the Group.

The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:

HESERY BEEHESEAY
Members Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
AEBAE(ZEELE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
BIFERRS A Mr Lau Wah Sum nete 2/2
ik i ta s Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
hESkAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
HMS T AL Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
H BERELEA T —_F— A HETHBEESEZZ Note: Mr Lau Wah Sum ceased as a member of the audit committee with effect from

BElE - FEMTAR  ARRHEBHEMIBXEZES 1 January 2012. During his tenure, two audit committee meetings were held.

g
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Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance functions. The duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the

CG Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the seven board meetings held during the financial year ended
31 March 2012, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate
governance. At the meetings, the Board formulated corporate governance
policies and practices with particular regard to the compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; reviewed the policy on training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; developed
a general code of conduct for employees and Directors; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in corporate

governance report.
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Board Committees (continued)
Corporate governance functions (Continued)
Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set

out below:

HEEBAE FERHEERILRE

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HiTEE Executive Directors
BRI () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BN E(FEE) Mr Cheong Kheng (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
EMESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 1/2
fepoyealbinley Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
$EIRIS/NMA Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FPITEE Non-executive Directors
ik i ta s Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
BIFERE = Mr Lau Wah Sum Nete 1/1
BUHBITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
hEFEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
HMSTAEE Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2
2 BERAENEERDNIZEATHERRTNERES Note: The attendance of Mr Lau Wah Sum is made by reference to the number of

SERBEHY -

ZE N2

REE-_T——F=ZA=1+—HLFE ARQF
REM—EEH G MEBARAEEREHE
B 4978 11,035,000 7T A 1% BIR 75 FI{E (B 49 75 1
595,0007T Z 3 EARTS - IEXERIBSERBES
7RIl 57 #294,000 7T K174 # 292,000 7T I £ 7% AR 75
e B B AR TS -

relevant board meetings held during his tenure.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Auditor of the Company, KPMG,
provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,035,000 to the
Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of approximately
HK$595,000 to the Group, which included HK$294,000 and HK$292,000

being charges for tax services and interim review respectively.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal control system
and reviewing its effectiveness. Procedure and systems are in place to
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition; to maintain proper
accounting records and to ensure accuracy of financial information and
compliance with applicable statutes, rules and regulations. Defined roles,
responsibilities and reporting lines have been established. However, these
procedure and systems are designed to minimise and mitigate the risk of
failure in operation and achievement of the Company’s objectives and can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against errors, losses or

fraud.

The Board has, with the assistance of the audit committee of the Company,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2012. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and risk management functions. The Board considers that the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget are
adequate. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern which

has to be brought to the attention of the shareholders.

Shareholders’ Relations
To enhance its accountability and transparency, the Company is committed

to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communication are prepared in both English and Chinese versions
and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable. Such
documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (http://ttll.etnet.com.hk/ca-calendar-e.html) thereafter.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company which spell
out shareholders’ rights can be found on the websites of the Company and
the HKEXx.

Shareholders may at any time make a written request for the Company’s

information to the extent that such information is publicly available.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction

Annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-face communication
between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote
at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend. Board
members, in particular, Chairman of the Board and chairmen of the Board
Committees, or their delegates, appropriate management staff and external
auditor normally attend annual general meetings to answer shareholders’

questions.

Shareholders are also provided with means by which their inquiries can be
put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email address

(ttlcosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax number and

telephone number, are made available on the Company’s website. For
queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings, they should be directed

to the Company’s share registrars.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the Articles of
Association of the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene
general meetings and put forward proposals at general meetings. Relevant

procedure is set out below:

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
° To convene an AGM
The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. This is

usually held in September.

If the Company fails to hold an AGM after 15 months have elapsed
since the date of the previous AGM (which is unlikely to occur), any
Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁw
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (Continued)

To move a resolution at an AGM
The number of Shareholders necessary for moving a resolution at an
AGM shall be:

(i) Shareholders holding not less than 1/40 of the total voting
rights of Shareholders having at the date of the requisition the
right to vote at the AGM; or

(ii) not less than 50 Shareholders holding shares in the Company
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000.

The requisition must be in writing and state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution. The
written requisition shall be signed by all the Shareholders concerned
and may consist of several documents in like form containing the

signatures of all the Shareholders concerned.

The written requisition must be deposited at 9/F, iSQUARE,
63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered
office of the Company, for the attention of the Board not less than
6 weeks before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than 1 week before the AGM in the case of

any other requisition.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share registrars
and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM provided that the Shareholders concerned
have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and
circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholders concerned
in accordance with the statutory requirements to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is verified as not
in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to deposit
reasonably sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the
said purposes, the Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) (Continued)

To propose a person other than a Director of the Company as
a Director

The Company at the meeting at which a Director retires may fill the
vacated office by electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other
than the person to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who
is duly qualified to attend and vote at the AGM, wishes to propose
a person other than a retiring Director of the Company for election
as a Director of the Company at the AGM, he/she should sign and
deposit a notice of intention to that effect at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed
by the nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The
minimum length of period during which such notices are given shall
be at least 7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no
earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the AGM (inclusive
of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of the AGM
(the “Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for the AGM will be

set out in the circular to be despatched to the Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the AGM,
the Company will consider adjourning the AGM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 business days’ notice of the

proposal, whichever is the longer.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

To convene an EGM

Shareholders holding not less than 1/20 of the paid-up capital of the
Company at the date of the deposit of the requisition can deposit a
written requisition to convene an EGM at 9/F, iSQUARE, 63 Nathan
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of

the Company, for the attention of the Board.

The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting and
signed by the Shareholders concerned. It may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the

Shareholders concerned.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s share registrars
and upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order,
the company secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements
to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition is
verified as not in order, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened as

requested.

Where, within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition,
the Directors of the Company do not proceed duly to convene an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date on which the
notice convening the EGM is given, the Shareholders concerned,
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, provided that
any EGM so convened is held within 3 months from the date of the

requisition.
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IR R EAZ ) Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
ERIRE RS (@) Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) (Continued)
o  BHFRIREARE(E) e To convene an EGM (Continued)
5 R % B K = 3 AN ER Notice periods for EGM
TEEAERENERIREASIRE VES The notice period to be given to all the registered Shareholders for
MZB4 T AR SR AR A EI A E 2 E s consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned
MEMAR - @ at an EGM varies according to the nature of the proposal. A brief

description of which is set out as follows:

ERHME &R THEAH

Nature of the proposal Notice period required

i
If the proposal:

o RN —IHEBRER > TORTOEBEROHE@AEMN
constitutes an ordinary resolution not less than 14 clear days’ notice in writing

o B —IERRIAEE > POR-T—EBERXNEEBM
constitutes a special resolution not less than 21 clear days’ notice in writing

o JRIREBCR RHEDI VIR TE 2 K Rl @ A — FRAREARGETATOR T NARNEEDEN
requires a special notice under the Hong Kong not less than 28 days’ notice in writing before the EGM

Companies Ordinance
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the five largest suppliers and five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases

and sales respectively.
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) R AR A R RN A S B R % B 9 B BUK i TSR B
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PN
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465,734,0007T( = F ——4 : #¥1,252,195,0007T)
ERARE - HEOEMESFEIENGEE
mPEE o

ARBERZZT—=F— A+ BIREFTHRE
FRAEKIOT(ZZ—F : 1) - EFSHE
FREEHE-_T——F=A=+—HILFED
KRB FREBO20T(ZE——F : R
B#E0.17TT) ©

ZERM
AEBRAFEARNNESZHERAEB105,0007T
(=Z——%F : #¥115,0007T) °

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 44 to 118.

Transfer to Reserves

Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$465,734,000
(2011: HK$1,252,195,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity.

An interim dividend of HK$0.10 per share (2011: Nil) was paid on 16 January
2012. The Board now recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.20 per share (2011: HK$0.17 per share) in respect of the year ended
31 March 2012.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$105,000 (2011: HK$115,000).

\
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EEEE Fixed Assets
EE & EMNZ B FTIET SR I R ERM TS o Movements in fixed assets are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
REEBRREWENT : Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:
HERSEREEYE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
RERZ HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
Bl E 5 B0 A
BERD IR BB N T =5

(NLBERHER 742555

iISQUARE Shopping centre Medium

63 Nathan Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

ET¥ERE Ti5RIFERL A

HRABR - —BABM KR

LT L2~ L3RLAEESL

NEBETRAE AT RN

(BB B 225%)

Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium

Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,

105 How Ming Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

pFET AL BRYIZE  FEANRERE A

W~ Z# - = RmiEg

NERDEZZABNABZT/\H

R NV RE B ERE 78055 )

Goodluck Industrial Centre Showrooms, car parking spaces Medium

Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, and car workshops

808 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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Eﬁ%ﬁ(%) Fixed Assets (Continued)
HERSGEAREEYZE®) Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
(Continued)
b2 RERE HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BfEE S0 WRE ~H
Tig

BEETHBR =2 TR R

mEEP _t—E2_+=5%

(/8351 R 36655 )

Euro Trade Centre Offices Long
5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and

Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No.366)

HZE% i
NE—Z+MER

RN T S R

ERABBE=T=5%

Yi An Plaza Offices Medium
Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,

No. 33 Jianshe 6 Road,

I
fhit

T

Yuexiu District,

Guangzhou, PRC

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors
Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Kheng Lim
Cheong Keng Hooi
Cheong Sim Lam

Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Directors
Sin Cho Chiu, Charles
Lau Wah Sum (resigned with effect from 1 January 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Yau Allen Lee-nam

Tse Pang Yuen

In accordance with articles 103 and 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Chow
Wan Hoi, Paul shall retire from the board by rotation at the forthcoming

annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed
to their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, for an initial period of two years effective on
1 January 1986 and their appointments continue after the said period unless

and until either party gives to the other three months’ notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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AR FRIBCGE S R B (B )
F2NIERFNBEMET - JRBCEH T
ANEERITES RS ORETA(RETA )
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(a) ZAAE]

fEpEye Cheong Hooi Hong
FEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim

e e Cheong Keng Hooi
ppede) Cheong Sim Lam
BRI Cheong Chong Ling
il Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

—m v T” =N,

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2012, the directors and chief executives of the Company and
their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)) had the following interests in the
shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”):

(@ The Company

SREEB%0.25T 2 RAEE
Number of shares of HK$0.25 each

B A= RERES
Personal 1011\
interests interests

4,625,792 —
46,023,872 115,292
26,862,036 1,002,384

1,099,504 -

412,000 —
2,000 —

NRER

Corporate

interests

115,200
(7)(Note)

B
e
Total
beneficial

interests

4,625,792
46,139,164
27,864,420

1,099,504

412,000
117,200

HE 21T
BRA7 4 8
B

% of

total issued

shares

0.97%
9.72%
5.87%
0.23%
0.09%
0.02%

i ARRER T 11520008 BRI IR A R P
B #9115,2000 8% 17 o RIFFEFFEBI - 5E1E0
TR AR I B AR

Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken to be

interested in such shares under the SFO.

\
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(b) SEEEPEIEBRATR (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
BREEBE I T2EBREE
Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each
HERT
EARER SERER AFIfER wme WEZH
Total % of
Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued
interests interests interests interests shares
fEpEye Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 — — 2,073,992 0.58%
$EIEHR Cheong Kheng Lim 24,555,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
o b Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,035,119 3.34%
f=pede] Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
il Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 — — 1,588,000 0.44%
JErERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(71)(Note)
T REHER T HI120,0000% AR EAR QBT Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
B H9120,00000E @A o ARFFEHIEGI - a3 shares held by Chason Limited where Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles is taken
SR AR L SR R - to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
(¢) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (¢) Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.

it
s

Cheong Hooi Hong
Cheong Sim Lam

BREESRAEZTI TZEERYE

Number of ordinary shares of MYR1 each

HE 1T

B BRA7 4B 8

B A= KB DR By HEZ
Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial total issued
interests interests interests interests shares
1 — — 1 0.00001%

— 3 — 3 0.00003%

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =
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EENESTHAEEER Interests and Short Positions of Directors and

3

&0 ~ 48 Eﬁﬂzﬁﬁﬂ EREZKRER  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
KRE @) and Debentures (continued)
(d REARRQF (d) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

BEREEEABITZEEREE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 81T

EnfEn R HEE

PN KEER AR ny WEZ L

Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

interests interests interests interests shares

EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong 25 — — 25 25%

SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%

SEImE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 — — 25 25%

$ELA Cheong Sim Lam 25 - — 25 25%
(e) mBEBRATA (e) Yik Fok Investment Holding Company, Limited

BREEEIT2EBREE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$1 each

IR 81T

EnEn R HEE

B ARz KEER AT ER mE WEZ L

Total % of

Personal Family Corporate beneficial  total issued

interests interests interests interests shares

fEpEye Cheong Hooi Hong 10 - - 10 0.00005%
§EIBA Cheong Kheng Lim 10 - - 10 0.00005%
1S Cheong Keng Hooi 10 - - 10 0.00005%
feiede Cheong Sim Lam 10 — — 10 0.00005%

B B TR ERE SN - R RIIRIRE S 140128352 Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the directors and
ERERTHELCMER  IERIRETFRIE chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
AR AARFREBEAZAIELONERR  RF Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
——F=ZA=1+—8 ' ARRES ZETHA or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
B RHBEA (EJ:%*EEUZ%%)@ RBETEEXR meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
NAEISHE AR EE (B A BN EXVEFTER kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
EE)BRMD - RN ERENERIAR to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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TERERHEMATEENIRM Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
MEERONERRAR Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

M ElATHBEZARAIEERESITHRAR As at 31 March 2012, other than the interests of the directors and chief
N - ARBEBA - WIRIKEEIZBRES executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
EHIEI36 KB ELERNE LR MHERER - B notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
TE-—FZA=Z+—HEEAREBRORELS in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
EWAT SFO:

BREE BT
A¥0.257T 2 gyt
REEE MBS

Number of
shares of Percentage of
HK$0.25 each total issued shares

REARAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

$EIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(3£1)(Note 1)

SEmiE Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(3¥2)(Note 2)
WA i Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%

(3£1)(Note 1)

REH Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(5¥2)(Note 2)

3 Notes:

1) EEMEEMBEENESANEBEZLIEED 1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
46,139,164 i J& (7 48R - 746,139,164 & %5+ - shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872/ BEEIEMIT AR 1152020 Al BH 46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
REHEBRLIREE - were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

@ EMELEMBEENRSEAEE LI HEN @) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
27,864,420 % B {7 48R © 7£27,864,420 B %5 /- shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,0360% A& WIS £+ E - 1,002,384 % 8 & 26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
HiBREELLER - were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

M FitFTIRBEEN R E——F=ZA=+— Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no other interests or short

B AAeWEERNEBEAEMEERES positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be

&1 Z5 33615 M B BT R B Ay A2 R D A48 recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO

AR MDEERIORE ° have been notified to the Company.

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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BHY -
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HEEIH ETES

AEER AR ASIETHER L WEE -
i E REEAR T Z E S -

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its controlling

shareholder or any of their subsidiaries was a party, or in which a director of

the Company had a material interest (whether directly or indirectly), subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

(@)

Agreements exist between the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a 50.01% owned subsidiary, whereby AIHL
agrees to provide administrative services (company secretarial) and
non-administrative services (office facilities and staff) to the Company
for an indefinite period. The aggregate fees paid to AIHL for the
year ended 31 March 2012 amounted to HK$1,200,000 (2011:
HK$1,200,000).

A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Property Management Limited (“DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except
for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE for an initial period
of 2 years after the date of the occupation permit. The management
agreement was renewed for another twelve months commencing
on 6 August 2011. Manager’s remuneration of HK$579,000 (2011:
HK$540,000) was paid by AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and

administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

\
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, as borrower,
entered into a facility agreement with a bank (the “Facility Agreement”) with
covenants relating to specific performance of the controlling shareholders of
AlHL.

The Facility Agreement comprises a 5-year term loan facility of up to
HK$1 billion and a 5-year revolving credit facility of up to HK$200 million.
The facilities have, subject to certain conditions, been extended for two

additional years.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default if
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi
and Mr Cheong Sim Lam, collectively being the controlling shareholders
of the Company and AIHL, cease to beneficially own, directly or indirectly,
at least 25% of the issued share capital of AIHL in accordance with the terms

of the Facility Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of such an event of default, the lending bank may,
among other things, demand immediate repayment of all of the outstanding
loans made to AIHL under the Facility Agreement together with accrued
interest. As at 31 March 2012, the aggregate level of the facilities that may
be affected by such default was HK$200 million.

The Company will make continuing disclosure pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules in subsequent interim and annual reports for so long as the

circumstances giving rise to the relevant obligation continue to exist.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other disclosure

obligations under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

(@

The changes in directors’ emoluments of individual executive
director and non-executive director for the year ended 31 March
2012 as compared with those for the last financial year are due to
apportionment of directors’ fees among certain directors as a result of
the resignation of a non-executive director at both the Company level
and subsidiary level, and allowances for expenses actually incurred
by certain executive directors at the subsidiary level. The policies
regarding the directors’ fees and such expenses of the Group have

not changed.

Mr Lau Wah Sum resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 January 2012. Accordingly, he ceased as
a member of both the audit committee and remuneration committee
of the Company and an alternate to Miss Cheong Chong Ling in
acting as the authorised representative of the Company on the same
day. Director’'s emoluments were paid to Mr Lau on a pro-rata basis

up to 31 December 2011.

Being a consultant to the Company with effect from 1 January 2012,
Mr Lau receives a remuneration of HK$170,000 per annum. At the
group level, Mr Lau additionally receives HK$380,000 per annum as

the consultancy fees from AIHL.

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles has been appointed as an alternate to
Miss Cheong Chong Ling in acting as the authorised representative of

the Company with effect from 1 January 2012.

Nomination Committee has been established with effect from
15 March 2012 with Mr Cheong Hooi Hong as committee chairman
and Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen

Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen as members.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2012 are set out in notes 24 to 26 to the financial statements.

\
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 119 to 120 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Auditors
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Kheng Lim
Deputy Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 65, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983
and 1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is
a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 40 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 63, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been
the Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels
Limited since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is
also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.
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Executive Directors (continued)

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 59, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 53, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 32 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 41, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration
Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at

Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 76, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and
1985 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and a notary public and holds a degree of
Master of Arts from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam
Ngan Stock Exchange from 1985 to 1986 and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited from 1987 to 1988. He was a former Chairman of the Home
Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban Council

and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.

Mr Lau Wah Sum, GBS, OBE, FCMA, FCPA, LLD, DBA, JP, aged 84, had been
a director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
1993 and 1988 respectively. He was a member of both the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Lau resigned all his offices with effect from 1 January
2012. He is now engaged by the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited as a consultant. Mr Lau was a Legislative Councillor from
1988 to 1995, Chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist
University and Chairman of the Urban Renewal Authority. He currently
is a member of the Court of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and an independent non-executive director of another listed

company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 56, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company and Associated International Hotels
Limited since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as
chairman), remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee
(as member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
Mr Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been
an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr Chow is an independent non-executive director of

another listed company.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 71, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and
experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as
an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in
the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to

Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs

Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management

Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 61, joined the Group in 1987 and
has been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group,
Miss Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding
company. She has over 32 years of experience in accounting and financial

management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 55, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 42, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, ACCA, aged 43, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in
2008, Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field

of accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Shareholders of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 44 to 118, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 March 2012,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2012
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Consolldated Income Statement
BE-Z—-—F=A=1+—-BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012
T
$°000
BERE Continuing operation
=2 Turnover 3 461,980 382,630
BRFS A AN Cost of services (64,626) (80,367)
EF Gross profit 397,354 302,263
H A Other revenue 6 3,872 3,476
Hh Uz F 58 Other net income 6 1,497 9,967
ITEEA Administrative expenses (40,247) (36,846)
REMELESB A Profit from operations before valuation
Y 4R & 3 R changes in investment properties 362,476 278,860
WEYEGERF Valuation gains on investment properties 15(a) 207,827 788,239
REVEMAEEHE Profit from operations after valuation
B & & E R changes in investment properties 570,303 1,067,099
RLE AN Finance costs 7() (2,464) (9,175)
R A F Profit before taxation 7 567,839 1,057,924
8% Income tax 10(a) (102,105) (8,223)
REFELE 2KRFEERER Profit for the year from
continuing operation 465,734 1,049,701
R Discontinued operation
RELKLELEZARFERR  Profit for the year from
discontinued operation 5(a) - 202,494
AEERR Profit for the year 11 465,734 1,252,195
—F HIA LG - Attributable to:
NEERRER Equity shareholders of the Company 11
— g — Continuing operation 250,901 539,814
— R — Discontinued operation - 101,264
250,901 641,078
IR AR R = Non-controlling interests
— BB — Continuing operation 214,833 509,887
— R PagE — Discontinued operation - 101,230
214,833 611,117
AEEBRR Profit for the year 465,734 1,252,195
BRERN-EXRE#E Earnings per share - basic and diluted 14
FELE Continuing operation $0.53 $1.14
Feq It Discontinued operation — $0.21
$0.53 $1.35

FES51BEE 18BN TIBAMEHRERN—Z 5 The notes on pages 51 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

BARAAREESZMNEMNAREIIRERENTIEY Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
HPMIFE12 attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 12.

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BE-ZE-—-—E=A=+—BLLEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

A EA

REEHEE KA IR
BRIERKEHDERARER) :

BN R RIB TR

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
(after tax and reclassification
adjustments):

Exchange differences on translation of

2012
FTr
$000

465,734

\’

FREEEMER Z58 financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries (15) 22,456

A EERES Available-for-sale equity securities:
N EERFEZEFE net movement in fair value reserve 13 (391) 2,234
EmEEHES Surplus on revaluation of other properties 15(a) = 16,884
(406) 41,574
AEEEEBALLE Total comprehensive income for the year 465,328 1,293,769

THIALRER : Attributable to:

NaElESE R Equity shareholders of the Company 250,502 662,985
JEVERR AR SR =5 Non-controlling interests 214,826 630,784
AEEZEBALLE Total comprehensive income for the year 465,328 1,293,769

FH1EEF118ERMFB AR BHREN—IBH -

Annual Report

The notes on pages 51 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheets
R-ZZB—-F=A=+—H(UB%IR) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

£33
The Group

¥ /N

The Company

ERBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 15
— IREE — Investment properties 10,297,804 10,073,812 209,600 182,300
— Hib¥= - BiE  — Other properties, plant
B and equipment 110,213 102,913 - —
10,408,017 10,176,725 209,600 182,300
R E AT Interest in subsidiaries 16 — — 244,575 245,481
At EREZSTE S Available-for-sale equity
securities 17 5,637 5,199 — —
ERTBEE Deferred tax assets 10(d) - 242 = —
10,413,554 10,182,166 454175 427,781
RBEE Current assets
FEUCERSK - 5T Accounts receivable, deposits
KIFERR and prepayments 18 40,660 56,621 384 427
RNEAFEWPTISHEL Current tax recoverable 10(c) 7 372 = 164
EIRHRRI T Pledged bank deposits 19 276,352 502,768 - —
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 127,143 899,151 11,120 6,366
444,162 1,458,912 11,504 6,957
RENEE Current liabilities
RITEFH—AEM  Bankloan - secured 24 - 200,000 — —
Ef T Other payables and accruals
FEETEA 21 84,212 146,380 1,467 861
BdGETE Deposits received 22 138,822 131,327 1,718 996
KRB &R Provision for long service
payments 23 1,602 1,370 1 —
B E T E AR IE Obligations under finance leases 25 41 41 — _
RERFEFRSRL Current tax payable 10(c) 40,010 17 = —
264,687 479,135 3,186 1,857
RBEEZEE Net current assets 179,475 979,777 8,318 5,100
BEELBERREAMR Total assets less current
liabilities 10,593,029 11,161,943 462,493 432,881

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =
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BEAEX Balance Sheets
R-ZZB—-F=A=+—H(UB%IR) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

rEE PN
The Group The Company

EFREBER Non-current liabilities
RITEF—HEE Bank loan — secured 24 200,000 1,000,000 = —
JE (< BT 3 (B Government lease premiums
payable 26 2,193 2,240 - —
BhE T EAE Obligations under finance leases 25 79 120 - —
ELERIEAR Deferred tax liabilities 10(d) 26,402 1,001 660 730
228,674 1,003,361 660 730
EEFE NET ASSETS 10,364,355 10,158,582 461,833 432,151
BEARRF#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A% Share capital 27(b) 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
i Reserves 5,196,629 5,074,304 343,150 313,468
5,315,312 5,192,987 461,833 432,151
FEIERR R R R Non-controlling interests 5,049,043 4,965,595 = —
AR TOTAL EQUITY 10,364,355 10,158,582 461,833 432,151

FFeN —E——F A+ \BREITFFA Y o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2012.

EE =2 Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim
EEE SEEM Director Director

FS51EEF118B M IB A BHERA—ZLn o The notes on pages 51 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z—-—F=A=1+—-BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NRERRRER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

MEE FER
Ba  BROEE EfRE  NERRE e BARRE FEEA 28 BREn

Non-

Share Share Revaluation Exchange Fairvalue  Capital  Retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests
T T T Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tn
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

2010548104 Balance at 1 April 2010
fe 118,683 3147 892,508 4941 1849 70892 3437982 4530002 4334811 8864813

KEEERSEH:  Changesin equity for the year:

REERH Profit for the year - - - - - — 641078 641078 611117 1252,1%
Etp2EIA Other comprehensive income - - 8443 52323 2,234 5,907 — 21007 19667 41574
PERALE Total comprehensive income - - 8443 5323 2,034 5907 641,078 662985 630784 1293769

R2011%€3A31AK  Balance at 31 March 2011 and
011F4B1EK 1 April 2011

REEEHEH:  Changesin equity for the year:

RERE Profit for the year - - - - - - 250001 250901 214833 465734
Ef2ERA Other comprehensive income - - - (1,054 (391) 1,046 - (399) m (406)
*EUNEE Total comprehensive income - - - (1,054) (391) 1,046 250901 250,502 214826 465328
BRE—BHEE  Dividends approved i respect of

ke the previous financial year  12(b) - - - - - - (80704  (80,704) - (80,704)
BRAHBER Dividends declared! in respect of

ERioliE) the current financial year —~ 12(8) - - - - - - (47473 (47479) - (47479
SAFEERRES  Dividends paid to non-controling

RE interests - - - - - - - - (131,378 (131,378)

- - - (1,054) (391) 1,046 122,724 122,325 83448 205773

2012838314 Balance at 31 March 2012
o373 118,683 3,147 900,951 9,210 3,692 77,845 4,201,784 5315312 5,049,043 10,364,355

FH51ERF118EMM B A ERERN—ID The notes on pages 51 to 118 form part of these financial statements.

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BE-Z—-—F=A=1+—-BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ReEE) Operating activities
PR A A Profit before taxation
— BEgE — Continuing operation
— R — Discontinued operation
FEEIEE - Adjustments for:
— FEUA — Interest income
— REERKAR — Finance costs
—hE — Depreciation
— B EEERF] — Valuation gains on investment
properties
— HERHEEREZS — Gain on disposal of available-
EFHEF for-sale equity securities
— A HEREZFES  — Impairment loss on available-
EOVEREN 55 for-sale equity securities
— REETFEEE — Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
&8 CiF)) 588 fixed assets
— FWEAEME — Dividend income from listed
WA securities
— INESE BT — Foreign exchange gains
EEESEHA Operating profit before
BERT changes in working capital
FERL Decrease in inventories
FEUCERSK ~ 7T Decrease/(increase) in accounts
JYSELNES receivable, deposits and
w (1 hn) prepayments

E MR R BT (Decrease)/increase in other
EBRACHD),/ 1N payables and accruals

BURET2IE N Increase in deposits received
RERG S %HE Increase/(decrease) in provision
#hn, CRd) for long service payments

JE ST A b (B R Decrease in government lease
premiums payable

BEEIKFBHIRSE  Cash generated from

operations
BETHIA Tax paid
— BNEBAERHE  — Hong Kong profits tax paid
— BB A — Overseas tax paid
— B HERIEA — PRC tax paid
REER B Net cash generated from
HIRE R operating activities

2012
Fr
$000
567,839 1,057,924
— 202,495
567,839 1,260,419
(2,991) (3,397)
2,464 9,175
7,124 6,658
(207,827) (788,239)
- (7)
2 5
60 (203,837)
(253) (50)
(1,567) (1,129)
(202,988) (980,815)
364,851 279,604
- 244
15,834 (582)
(42,113) 23,448
7,472 26,780
232 (29)
(44) (44)
(18,619) 49,817
346,232 329,421
(35,897) (264)
(2 ©)
(205) (209)
(36,104) (479)
310,128 328,942
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fﬂ%)ﬁs% Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
—F=ZA=+—-RALEFE(UBMIIR) Forthe year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012
Fr T
$°000 $°000
REEE Investing activities
Y8 Interest received 3,137 2,932
BABRTEENK Payment for purchase of fixed
(TBIFREYS)  assets other than investment
properties (14,484) (1,861)
KREYELHBFR Payment for expenditure on
investment properties (33,870) (100,484)
BEBTFEBEMS  Proceeds from disposal of fixed
FRIE assets — 511,794
ARt &R Payment for purchase of
BHRR available-for-sale equity
securities (580) —
B Dividends received 103 50
EHEFIRITIER Decrease/(increase) in pledged
A, () bank deposits 226,416 (342,966)
HETHEBERERZ  Proceeds from disposal of
BHFISRIA available-for-sale equity
securities - 7
RETE RSB Net cash generated from
KRS FEE investing activities 180,722 69,472
RESEE Financing activities
EEEHEEHRSH  Capital element of finance lease
BRI rentals paid 41) (35)
BB B RS Interest paid on government
lease premiums payable (115) (115)
EERRITER Repayment of bank loan (1,000,000) —
IRITERASFIE  Proceeds from bank loan = 95,000
BIERITERRE Interest paid on bank loan (3,175) (7,600)
EAEMEEMNZA  Other borrowing costs paid (268) (160)
BEXARE Dividend paid (128,177) -
DX TIFERRAYE  Dividend paid to non-controlling
& E interests (131,378) —
BESEEN (FTA) Fr18 Net cash (used in)/generated
HIREFE from financing activities (1,263,154) 87,090
iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%{“ L] Net (decrease)/increase in
WA),#iNEEE  cash and cash equivalents (772,304) 485,504
742011/20104%4 A1 B Cash and cash equivalents at
HEEREBELEEY 1 April 2011/2010 899,151 411,814
INESERBSBINE/E  Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes 296 1,833
M3A31AMWEEKR Cash and cash equivalents at
HEZEY 31 March 20 127,143 899,151

E51BEEFMBANMEB AN BHmEN 5D -

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =

The notes on pages 51 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1

FTESFBE

(@

BREHR

KRB RAR LR E B SETAD
B PR E AR BB R
) BB EMEERNEIKE
BUBHREEL) (BEGFHER)
MRE  BEARGARAMEE
CRBMEDIDRREREL - ARITETREK
RN ERKEEBMEXXSME
RARER ETHRANDKERE - U
TEASERANEIZEFEREM

o

BEGERAGRED T A TR
RIEFTHCEBMBIMELER) - ZF
ERNEAREEMARAE RN
BB R AR A IR R A - ffEE2
TR A R 006 M8 R 45 L B K SR (14 R
W E R AR R AR LRI E 1L
Al BE AT M A &5t BB & 5T

AR AV AR B

2 E——_F=-—A=+—HILtFE
AT BHRERBEEARR TS B
Nl (FiE AEE]) -

BT XFrE M S s BUR AT R 51
BERBAARBEARIN  MEN
MRS AR LR AERFTEBE

pi-

— BREYE(2EMEE) &

— DEAAHLERRESND

BT A(2HMWE1(d) °

1

X

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the

accounting policies set out below:
— investment properties (see note 1(g)); and

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).
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| .y

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

/ (LA #%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTTEER @)
(b) BIEBRROFERELE @)

HEGENERDEEREELAEGR
REEEREREAAEBEREHE
B AR FriS BUsEm & R M BRIE & AR
(2HMEE1V) ©

A (EAPBHREERDOMBHRER
ZHRE - BEEEANFEBRNER
REHREE - BE - WAMHOHK
BIEHHE - AEAARR - BLefbat
FHERRERBEATERNEIRE
HEERBEARRAIENZHEMEA
ZEHm  RERBRTEEEHEE
AR BEMRCARSMEERAE
AR (B RS PTIE L HIBT A 258 - B
RERATBEA BINERTEER -

18 & T e B = IR AT AAERE R
#® o MRGFEFANEBIRAZTE
K8 A ferxiEnmg
R INREETH B AT AR R A 19 B
FE - RIFEERERT e AR AR R P
IR ©

() MERRNIFERKRFEDS
MEARREIAREZENNER -
EHEEASEARXEZERN
MM EBERAFE R EEB R
B - EHEENFERESE ]
RATRENEEREESMNAETEZ
5l) e
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

(see note 1(v)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their

proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)(i)), unless

the investment is classified as held for sale.

Available-for-sale equity securities
The Group’s policies for investments in equity securities, other

than investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

The Group designates investments in equity securities as
available-for-sale equity securities. Available-for-sale equity
securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction

costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, at each balance sheet date
the fair value of these investments is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from these investments is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(a)(iii). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(i)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Available-for-sale equity securities (Continued)
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the

Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the balance sheet date and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note 1(q)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(g).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(h)) and impairment losses

(see note 1(i)(ii).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leased assets (Continued)

(9)

U

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(i)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(g)).

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other

properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

—Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated

on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets

(i)

U

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
accounts and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and accounts and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention to the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(j)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the

recoverable amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

@

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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BRI

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

U

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

accounts and other receivables (Continued)

— For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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other properties, plant and equipment may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

— Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair values less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows

independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value

less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(i)

0)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories comprise of stocks of beverages and consumables,

are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated on the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

K)

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)(i), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash

flow statement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

(0)

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb



| .y

SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESTTEER @)
(0) Fris®Hi@)

R T REBROPISMERSN - FABEIE
ERIAE EMELERBEE(RRR

RATREES BT A2 BIERI T B EE 3R
R RET G MEHER - X
BHHERE M ENERERTELRT
TIEE B M AR R E R K B iEE 8
BRIFENERERZZEMEEE
R HELERNERNERR
BMERFE—EREREHE - WEH
FE RN E B = 28T 8 0 MR — 57
MISRIE T IE S EFTE £ AT E R
A] [7) 1% HA sk A AT BA 45 62 A AR P 8
Bl e TERAERRAIGENERERER
BRUZIBERB AN AR ER
MBRERMEENEERIBEEE
B - NERAR—%A - IEERS
B[R-S HEE LR — EHE R
B WRESTEHTEMEAARTAR
TS E A R 2 B e A (R — EAfE A
[ o

KEWEELMEééﬁﬁ@mﬁM
EZRREEBUTERNAIIME

T;EJYEMmWM§Fi%ﬁ
IR HER (B XA H e — 25
AIBRIN) - AR E M B N R (a8 e
MER - RARVAEE A AEHIE
HORS [ - i BL7E AT TR S RO R 2R AN K AT
BREmAERER  SHNBARHE
£ QIR RAR AT BEFE 15 2R 88 @ ) =
£) e

8

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5

1

s —

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(e),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the balance sheet date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (Continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Golf and recreational club and related services
Revenue arising from golf and recreational club operation

is recognised when the relevant services are provided.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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BSHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss

on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

N N e . g . .
1 EFESTHEER@ 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(t) PREEER () Related parties
@ —BATHZATHRELOR (@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

WREEAEENBEB T - W related to the Group if that person:

BRAT

)  HAREBEAEGIES T () has control or joint control over the Group;

P

iy HEAEEHEERFES: (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
3

@iy RAEEXAEEEFANT (i) is a member of the key management personnel of
MBEREEAS - the Group or the Group’s parent.

b)) —EEENFTAETMETIIE ()  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

- R R AN E B/ conditions applies:

¥

i) ZERBEAELEEHAR ()  The entity and the Group are members of the
—EEMNKE(AIZEAR same group (which means that each parent,
7l « WEARMEZME subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
NEFE LB ) others).

iy —AEBES—EEHH (i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
BRERAEEPE(HE other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
S—ERBFBEEETK member of a group of which the other entity is a
EMEBERTINE & member).

EJI
iy MEETRHYER—F=H (i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
Ve &M - party.

(iv) BEBEE=EEN (v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
AEDE mME—EBE the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
RE-ZTEBHBEA
g .

v) ZEEIAAEENER (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
SEEEBMNERYES the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
A MR R R 5T entity related to the Group.

BE -
Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESHHBEw 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(t) EBES @ (t) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

—EE BT EEM T 5K

- R R A 2 7 52 18 1) R B
7 ()

(vii) J:%i%(a)o)l

—Z AN THRELSEETER B FIE
*%x%%ﬁ%%gaAigﬁa

THENRENXE -

EiE:

B2 MNP REFARENED
RPEEMEE - EEHRR T AEE
B THERE A B NH AR E R
BREREWRETERDENKR
AHER B ER —2 -

S
x
p=n|
i

okt

IJH'

il

BERERNZEE D BT AHFTEIAR
HHBHREZA ﬂﬂﬁﬂ%a FRED
HEAAMEUNEESE - YEEEM
MWBNE  FEIFUHE R
RSB - 0 HE MR IRFE TR
R EAREERENEEETE
AL RIVERIG 2R AE R T EAK
BEDEFTE LA ERERHLER] - AIA]

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2 &

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(v)

M

RAEGENIERDEE

MR-IBFRBEE(KEER
BINKREERTEBEHER
HMARFEERTRE - I
BRIAERKTHE - ZIER
PEEHREER)EEHHR
REARE RBREHEAGEEER
RHT—HEEN—
HEE ARNEEREBERS
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34}
i
m

A bt ’“*EE?TEH
ENRERENERFARFE -

EERENBRABAFER
Al FEREVBE(MEEASF
FrEMEBNEERAE) NFE
BROBINEHABEELE
o Hig - AUBOBERTA
BEERERIL  FRPEE
(T Aty E T EERIN) 3
REMAALREEMEREAR
{BER A h &R AR PS8R
W& P EIEE T IARER o

e DB R AEFEMERE
HAGFERENTEMELN
BMEBESERETER - R
E?Eiﬁ@ﬁ%-ﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ
EABRECOERATER
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation

v)

U

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-

controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-

current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁw
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(v) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (Continued)

(i)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a

subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see () above), if earlier. It also

occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the income

statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued

operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)

constituting the discontinued operation.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2 BIFBENEH 2 Changes in Accounting Policies
BBESHMAGHEMN T ZIECE B BRE The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs and
ERADNEEST R —TEHRE - ERETRFT one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting

REEAEEMNAARE NS R E X period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following

R o B AR B L BACER [ 1 B 75
HWERBH

— (BB GFTER)FE 2457 (2009 F £
&) R 7 o I 22 |

— (EEPBHREERDNUCE (20105F)

EURRIE B BRI

— (BB ER]) F 245 (2009 F &
BRI MERT B T ] —FAmMES °
I AREESEHAETEBE NS
7 WHEETENEREAEEE
BN LA 1 BAfE 69 BE S 75 4% B8 I S| A K
ERIERFTE - (BB ER)E24
5% (2009F 18T ) TMEER 7 AT HE
AERBOEEER AR AEBEIIE
BATHERAER - TS ARSENES
@,

— (EAAUBMEER)BRHE (2010
F)RAEAECE BT BIRE %R
FIHIEHMTE : BEINEEEK
R ZIBEET - HisE A AERE
SRITAMEETE TETNESR
L3R o FUASETHE AT LAT AR R
PR PERRNEENDE

developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does
not have any material impact on the Group’s related party
disclosures in the current and previous periods. HKAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure requirements
for government-related entities. This does not impact the Group
because the Group is not a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures
about the Group’s financial instruments in note 28 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the amounts

AN ELBIMNEATE

recognised in the financial statements in the current and
previous periods.

7R 6% 18] 30 % BR PR AT ) 7E 5 AT 5T A M i R
EREFTER R - ERBEKEB G
AEE125R[ RSB HER] @ I(BE R
HERDFAOTEREME N DA BEAR
IR EME NIRRT ERDE 165 1Y)
¥ BERRE IAEGEFTENITEN
BEMBERZEEFIAAMERIN - ZIEFTR
TR F - A BB FEHE
X BEZERTFFAMERT - ARED
RBE-ZT——F=A=+—HIFERTF
BRANGZIERT

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period, with the exception
of the amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax on investment properties carried at fair
value under HKAS 40, Investment property, and non-depreciable
assets measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the
amendments, the Group decided to adopt the amendments during
the year ended 31 March 2011.
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEH
FAEEN B ARRLSKEWHEAR
IHEE (RIE5) 1% NREBENEEXEBR
WA -

NEERNEEEPRRNSBEZ W ALER
RIERREZA T ¢

Turnover
The principal activity of the Group is property investment after the
Group’s golf and recreational club operation has been classified as

discontinued operation as set out in note 5.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

2012
SEoE
$°000
FERE Continuing operation
REMEHEBHES A Gross rentals from investment properties 461,980 382,630
miEgE Discontinued operation

BRI RELEGLERA

(P 5E5(a)) (note 5(a))

Revenue from golf and recreational club operation

- 17,010

%

7 BRER

AR EEEIIEE RIS B85 H L
TER - ERNBEHTFARERRITHE
12 A BIEHERD MRS AR AT
R R B SR T - AEEE WA

BENE - DRIAIMERE | R SERR
FREGKE |  SMRRBELSELERD
BRRLERE  EREBERIIFNHES
2INFAERERT AN FEEENER
ERRARED W MERE IWER -

ENAKEMEHENKANEESREE
BRPEARKMBE(FE]) > MAKES
RARMELASKLHRANMEESETZRE
FHRPIEE - R EEREEEIINE
RS - Bt - R EERL BT 25 -

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2 5

Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments which are organised
by business lines and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two reportable
segments, namely “Property leasing” and “Golf and recreational
club operation”. The golf and recreational club operation has been
classified as discontinued operation and the related information has
been set out in note 5. The information regarding continuing operation
as presented in the consolidated income statement represents the

information of the other reportable segment, property leasing.

Geographical information presents similar information as the Group’s
revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), while the Group’s
revenue and results of the golf and recreational club operation were
primarily derived from Malaysia. Therefore, no separate geographical

information is presented.
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BEHEMTE Notes to the Financial Staterments \
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
5 RIEKE 5 Discontinued Operation
REFER -E——FE=A-HEKEEN On 2 March 2011, the Group completed the disposal of properties
RERALNYE - ZWETERIESH K located in Malaysia mainly comprising the golf course land, the golf
Mgt EEReRANE T FASR resort which is situated on the golf course land, the condominium land
KECEBMN « FEL WM FF LM - R and the bungalow land, and the Group’s golf and recreational club
HER  AEENSBARELS KL I operation ceased thereafter.
BUARIE o
(@) AEERLFELRILES (@ The results of the discontinued operation for
EZWT the current and prior years are as follows:

BREARELERE

Golf and recreational club operation

B Turnover 3 = 17,010
AR%s, SR A Cost of services/sales — (11,554)
EF Gross profit — 5,456
EAulg A Other revenue — 1,623
E it s F 58 Other net income - 100
BEETEER Gain on disposal of fixed assets = 203,831

HEER Selling expenses — (544)
1T E A Administrative expenses = (7,971)
KRR Profit from operations - 202,495
REE AR Finance costs — _

BR B A= A Profit before taxation = 202,495
Figi Income tax 10(a) = )
REERF Profit for the year - 202,494
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BSHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5 &R 5 Discontinued Operation (continued)
(b) ZKEE&J:@E%JL?%E #y (b) The cash flows of the discontinued
HEREBWT : operation for the current and prior years

are as follows:

BRERRELERE

Golf and recreational club operation

KR TREFTRMIR £ 558 Net cash used in operating activities = (514,467)
S B REFTSHIRE 558 Net cash generated from investing activities - 511,986
HEeEREFE Net cash flows = (2,481)
2L Nsxv) D=1
6 HMWARWEFRE 6 Other Revenue and Net Income
2012
Fr
$000
Hip A Other revenue
MEMA Interest income 2,991 3,074
EMREHAREKA Dividend income from listed securities 253 50
Hith Others 628 352
3,872 3,476
Hith Wz 7F 58 Other net income
REETEE Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets
(B18),Sm M FE (60) 6
A ERERS BEAREREE  Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity
securities (2 5)
NS 3 B R 5 Net foreign exchange gains 1,559 9,959
HER[H I ERERSESM  Transfer from equity on disposal of
B aEs available-for-sale equity securities = 7
1,497 9,967

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =



B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BRI T ‘\
\P

7 BRBIBDRF 7  Profit Before Taxation
BRAIFDEF IR, (GTA)MEENT - 1 Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
MR ERIEE IR, GEA)BRBRIER amounts as set out below. The disclosures presented in this
B o note include those amounts charged/(credited) in respect of the

discontinued operation.

2012
T
$°000
(@) ®EMRZ (a) Finance costs
RITEZF A Interest on bank loan 2,065 8,920
FENERATHEFIE Interest on government lease premiums
payable 113 115
HABEBE KA Other borrowing costs 286 140
2,464 9,175
(b) BIMAE (b)  Staff costs
Fe  TEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 37,299 42,997
RERFERIKRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,275 1,492
38,574 44,489
(c) EHMEBE ()  Otheritems
SEENTES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (461,980) (382,630)
W BEERY Less: Direct outgoings 64,626 80,367
(397,354) (802,263)
KEHESBR - HEHE Operating lease charges: minimum lease
N — WEEe payments — property rentals = 361
FEUBR FURE Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment
&8,/ CREEEEm ) losses) on accounts receivable 592 (713)
FERAR Cost of inventories
(BREFERHEZT (including write off of inventories of Nil
(20114F : 212,0007T)) (2011: $212,000)) - 1,875
%R & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZEPRTE — audit services 1,035 1,063
— T ARTS — tax services 294 223
— H AR — other services 301 314
e Depreciation 7,124 6,658
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the

Eoy/UNE Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
A= BREHE 2012
-tk REWFE HETEAL R k]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T T T T T
$°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
HITEE Executive Directors
{ENEE Cheong Hooi Hong 104 1,927 700 - 2,731
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 104 3,334* 700 18 4,156
$EmiE Cheong Keng Hooi 104 1,511 300 - 1,915
B Cheong Sim Lam 104 1,443 300 - 1,847
B Cheong Chong Ling 104 872 120 18 1,114
FHTES Non-executive Directors
AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 104 550 - - 654
2R Lau Wah Sum
(R=—Z——% (resigned with effect from
—A—HET) 1 January 2012) 76 413 - - 489
BIUEHITESE Independent Non-executive
Directors
BEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - = = 340
kEH Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 — = = 170
1,550 10,050 2,120 36 13,756

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @i &4 A =



B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BRI T ‘\
\D

8 EEMEw 8 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
RIEE B THEDYE 161185 B = S Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
200 (B) Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: (Continued)

e 2 RBIRGHE
kB = \ e
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme

fees in kind bonuses  contributions

T T T T

$000 $°000 $000 $000

BITES Executive Directors

EEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,575 700 - 2,375
EM Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,121* 700 18 3,939
& Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,628 300 - 2,028
jrpode] Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,443 300 — 1,843
BEr Cheong Chong Ling 100 831 120 18 1,069

FYTES Non-executive Directors

AR Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
ZIER Lau Wah Sum 100 550 - - 650

BIUEHITESE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AZE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
HhES Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170
1,550 9,698 2,120 36 13,404
* EHHEIEEMEBMTERHEEME * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
12 F - fl 5T E A 4 43,066,000 7T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZ——4% : 3,066,0007T) ° value of approximately $3,066,000 (2011: $3,066,000).

Annual Report 2011-2012 Eﬁﬁb



; e
4

B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 EEMEAL 9 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
TR —ER - EERAUESHEN The five highest paid individuals for 2011 and 2012 are all directors of
ATHEERARRNEE  Ee 25 HR the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
FiEE8 o
10 PR 10 Income Tax
(a) #HEBRTZXRFIRWEHE (@) Taxation in the consolidated income
B statement represents:
2012 2011
Fr T
$°000 $'000
AEFE — HEFEHR Current tax - Hong Kong profits tax
R ERIE A Provision for the year 50,379 —
DEFEREEBTR Under-provision in respect of prior years 25,878 —
76,257 —
AEABIE — B RAF Current tax — Overseas and PRC
REF[E R TR Provision for the year 205 210
EEHIE Deferred tax
SEMERNABENEE Changes in fair value of
investment properties 706 548
T EEMELENED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 24,937 7,466
25,643 8,014
102,105 8,224
RE : Attributable to:
BELE Continuing operation 102,105 8,223
1R EAEE (MI7E5(a)) Discontinued operation (note 5(a)) = 1
102,105 8,224
BANSHEEBZIRAFE MG The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5%
R RREFIA16.5% (T ——F (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
16.5% ) MR E - BINHTB A A Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
R IE AR SGE R MR TR R current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries. PRC
H o PRAIARIZ T BEMEE 2 5~ taxation is calculated based on the applicable rate of taxation
RPTEROB R o in accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations of the
PRC.

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2 &
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 FRi8#ica) 10 Income Tax (continued)
(b) Fif *Rith‘%l]thﬁ? =5t (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
EEiHafmEER - accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2012
FTr
$000

BREERT = A Profit before taxation 567,839 1,260,419

ERTHERRES M8 Notional tax on profit before taxation,
EAMEAEBRMATENE  calculated at the rates applicable to

HEBIA profits in the countries concerned 92,925 217,058
TR S HEFRIE R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 16,790 20,193
HBAA TSN IETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (33,488) (205,592)
AERERMEZENTIEFE  Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised — (1,982)
NEEFERAEEEY Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised
BB ENTIEE this year - (21,453)
DAFEEEBTR Under-provision in prior years 25,878 —
BERHES S Actual tax expense 102,105 8,224
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BSHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 P8 10 Income Tax (continued)
(c) BESEBXRMTHNAHME (c) Current taxation in the balance sheets
WA represents:

rEE AT
The Group The Company

KEEFEFER  Provision for Hong Kong

A profits tax for the year 50,379 — = —
BT EHFIEE Provisional profits tax paid (31,547) (367) - (164)
18,832 (367) - (162)
LAEEERER  Balance of profits tax
EfhEeR provision relating to
prior years 21,161 — — —
39,993 (367) - (164)
FONR AR EIRIIE  Overseas and PRC taxation 10 12 = -
40,003 (355) - (164)
Rk : Representing:
ARHAEUWATSEL  Current tax recoverable @) 372 - (164)
NEAFERTFTSRE Current tax payable 40,010 17 = -
40,003 (355) - (162)

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

P

10 Frs®iem 10 Income Tax (continued)
(d) CERELEHREEENES (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised:
() AEE )  The Group
EEGREEEABERERNE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
ERIE(EE) /B ERERE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
DRAELZEEIT - movements during the year are as follows:

ihicl

MR ER

HERHE

Depreciation

allowances

Revaluation of in excess of

investment the related

properties depreciation
T T
$°000 $000

KB TFIEIER Deferred tax arising from:

EAERIE
R201054 818 At 1 April 2010 (790) 9,429 (15,894) (7,255)
FiEmP Charged/(credited) to

k. (GEA) profit or loss 548 (6,042) 13,508 8,014
2011438313 At 31 March 2011 (242) 3,387 (2,386) 759
720114 B1H At 1 April 2011 (242) 3,387 (2,386) 759
Pei=Entankil] i Charged to profit or loss 706 22,804 2,133 25,643
201293 H31H At 31 March 2012 464 26,191 (253) 26,402
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| /A
qp

BSHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

s —

10 Income Tax (continued)

afE: (d)

EHEEERBRERELTN

10 Fr5#i @)
(d) EEEW ERIEE E A
(#&)
iy A7
THBEMAKES
B

DA E

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)

The Company
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet and the movements during the year

are as follows:

ihicl

MR ER
HERHE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of

the related

depreciation
T
$000

KB THIEIER Deferred tax arising from:

IEERIE ¢
#R201064A1A8 At 1 April 2010 819 - 819
FiEmTP Charged/(credited) to

e (GEA) profit or loss 50 (139) (89)
R201193A31H  At31 March 2011 869 (139) 730
71201164 F1H At 1 April 2011 869 (139) 730
TEEmTf Charged/(credited) to

Mmer/(GtA) profit or loss 44 (114) (70)
R2012463A31H  At31 March 2012 913 (253) 660

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 P58
(d) CEIECHESENEE:
(#&)
iy HEESERMOEER

10 Income Tax (continued)
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised: (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation to the balance sheets

AEW
The Group

RATE

The Company

HEEEABER Net deferred tax assets
MERAEIERITE  recognised on
BEFEE the balance sheets = (242) — _
FEEAER Net deferred tax liabilities
RHEPELRITE  recognised on
BEFE the balance sheets 26,402 1,001 660 730
26,402 759 660 730
(e) RERWELEHRIEEE : (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

ZRM 1) FTE M FETBUR © |
MRARBEHETER BN EEEM
EERTAERKRERBGEF T IAK
HEE AEERARKREFEL
145951000 L (=& — — 5 -
146,000,000 7T ) &) 2 57§ % & 18 &
REBRELEHIBEE - RIBERITM
E o ELREEIETRERRE o

mé}

EHy

11 D EAE R R SRR
RAEERREGGEERANBE 22
F A A R ] B R %k B9 157,859,000 JT
(ZZ——% : 29,826,0007T ) Fl

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(0),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $145,951,000 (2011: $146,000,000)
for continuing operation as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not

expire under current tax legislation.

11 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders
of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $157,859,000 (2011: $29,826,000)

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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BSHERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 RE 12 Dividends
(@ NXEEENABERZRE (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
iz = the Company attributable to the year
2012
T
$°000
BEERAIARERE Interim dividend declared and paid of
BFHZ0.1070(20114F « £) $0.10 per share (2011: Nil) 47,473 —
REEBERGEEREES Final dividend proposed after the balance
3k B AR B EA%0.207T sheet date of $0.20 per share
(20114 : HAR0.177T) (2011: $0.17 per share) 94,946 80,704
142,419 80,704
REEBBREEHEREZZDIRAR The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
HREMATCEEAREREZAER not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
REE-

b) BRE—UBFEEEMNQT (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
FERIR - WHARFEHE of the Company attributable to the previous
REZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the

year

2012

T

$°000
BRE—BMBEE - R Final dividend in respect of the previous
REFROERZTR financial year, approved and paid during
R EFAR0ATT the year, of $0.17 per share (2011: Nil)
(20114 « /%) 80,704 -

Tian Teck Land Limited Xt &4 R A 7
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 HitZEWA

A SR R 5

13 Other Comprehensive Income
Available-for-sale equity securities

2012
T
$°000
AEERNEERH Changes in fair value recognised
NABEEE during the year (393) 2,236
ENOEFAEDEA Reclassification adjustments for amounts
BERAEE transferred to profit or loss:
RHEREAER — Transfer from equity on disposal = 7)
— BEEE — Impairment loss 2 5
2 @
BEHMEEBRARERD Net movement in the fair value reserve
KEEANRNRBERE during the year recognised in
2B 3 other comprehensive income (391) 2,234

14 BRER — EAXRE#E
EREABFNRIRBAFEEN D TESR
B EAG 42 A0% #250,901,0007T ( Z & ——

14 Earnings Per Share — Basic and Diluted

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

% :641,078,0007T) + HFRBFEL
5% R /250,901,000 ( =8 — — 4
539,814,000 7T ) K 2K B #% 1E 48 & % F &
Zn(=ZF——%F :101,264,0007T) * XE
BT AD 474,731,824 (% (=T ——4F ¢
474,731,824 5T E - ZE——FRZF
—ZFWEBTEA SR -

of $250,901,000 (2011: $641,078,000) represented by the profit from
continuing operation of $250,901,000 (2011: $539,814,000) and the
profit from discontinued operation of Nil (2011: $101,264,000), and
474,731,824 (2011: 474,731,824) shares in issue during the year.

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence in 2011 and 2012.
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15 BElEEE

B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 Fixed Assets

g7 — =

(@ &&KE (@) The Group
REM= 2% - BERRE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERGER
RENE -Gk HihgE it b
Properties held
for leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T i r T T
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
RASMEE - Cost or valuation:
R20THE4A1E At April 2011 10,073,812 101,824 22,024 123,848 10,197,660
ERLHE Exchange adjustments 1,289 - - - 1,289
BE Additions 14,876 - 14,484 14,484 29,360
RE Disposals - - (4,910) (4,910) (4,910)
DhEBERE Fair value adjustments 207,827 - = = 207,827
12012434318  At31 March 2012 10,297,804 101,824 31,508 133,422 10,431,226
R&: Representing:
WA Cost - 101,824 31,598 133,422 133,422
{BE—2012% Valuation — 2012 10,297,804 - - - 10,297,804
10,297,804 101,824 31,598 133,422 10,431,226
2iE Accumulated depreciation:
R0 E4R1E At April 2011 - 10,762 10,173 20,935 20,935
FEERE Charge for the year - 3,519 3,605 7,124 7,124
RERAED Written back on disposals - - (4,850) (4,850) (4,850)
12012434318  At31 March 2012 - 14,281 8,928 23,209 23,209
RERE: Net book value:
72012434318  At31 March 2012 10,297,804 87,543 22,670 110,213 10,408,017

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 BEEEE @) 15 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) A&EE®E) (@ The Group (Continued)

RENF Hit% - BERR MR
Investment

properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HERHER
BENZ A% HthgE
Properties held

for leasing

and capital Other Other

appreciation properties assets Sub-total
T3 i i i
$000 $000 $000 $000

BAR{EE - Cost or valuation:

M201064 18 At1 April 2010 9,229,784 141,824 20,468 162,202 9,392,076
ER AR Exchange adjustments 1,063 - - - 1,063
Eipps Reclassification 39,500 (56,884) - (56,864) (17,384)
ez Additions 15,226 - 1789 1789 17,015
RE Disposals - - (233) (233) 239)
BhAH% Surplus on revaluation - 16,884 - 16,884 16,884
RREERE Fair value adjustments 788,239 - - - 788,239
HM20114E3A318  At31 March 2011 10,073,812 101,824 22,004 123,848 10,197,660
& Representing:
AR Cost - 101,824 22,004 123,848 123848
HE—2011F Valuation —2011 10,073,812 - - - 10,073,812
10,073812 101,824 22,024 123,848 10,197,660
ZiHE: Accumulated depreciation:
201054518 At1 Apri 2010 - 24,626 7,068 31,894 31,894
TERME Charge for the year - 3,520 3,138 6,658 6,658
RERED Written back on disposals - - (233) (233) (233)
EEiv] Reclassification - (17,384) - (17,384) (17,384)
M201143A318 At 31 March 2011 - 10,762 10,173 20,935 20935
REFE Net book value:
M201143A318  At31 March 2011 10,073812 91,062 11,851 102,913 10,176,725
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 EEEE @)
(b) A&AF

& — =

15 Fixed Assets (continued)

The Company

REMH

Investment properties

&1 : Valuation:

2011/2010F4 A1 H At 1 April 2011/2010 182,300 159,400
RABEAR Fair value adjustments 27,300 22,900
M3A31H At 31 March 209,600 182,300

() MEREFEMNDANT

The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:

rEE AN
The Group The Company

EEE In Hong Kong

— RHEE — Long leases 86,684 76,705 = —

— hEfE — Medium-term leases 10,257,809 10,055,667 209,600 182,300

FEFBEIN Outside Hong Kong

— R E — Medium-term leases 40,854 32,502 = —
10,385,347 10,164,874 209,600 182,300

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =
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B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 BEEEE @)

(d)

REBEE-_ZT——F=F=+—H81t
FE —BREBAMNMEDH
ARHERZ REWMEZEREE
39,500,000 T (BIZIEM ¥R Bm
EzAZAREE)BEMBHMmY
XIEATREME] - @HE - Hit
Y) % B {2 £ 16,884,000 T E A H
fih 2 ER AR ER - BRAZEEEN
B FEVE % 1R BR 4 %5.8,441,000 T 7% -
8,443,0007T B R E (A R E AR

R-ZE——F=ZA=+—H0 &EY
¥XPREERES  FEIEPLOE
FERE - BT EANENETEM -
BEEZHR O —ERERESN—
B - ¥ BEMRE BB E
BB —EBIEAENETE
iz ~ — BRI YN —(EE A R RE
FEWE -

A

RZBE——F=A=+—0 " URE
BNPENRENESHR—BBEYE
EhER — B ITEENAERE
RABI(EETIHEEHEEBAEME
SERGEBZENR  BEHWEMHZY
(A E RATERARIA AR
) EITER - BETIAERME
ZTEREAGRYERR) - 2RM
HREURSER  REGEEBERT
FHEE WA E M ET ATRL ER
1& B # 0 JF A8 & W A8 N 80 1E R
jj °

HibEEBREM KE - /REN;A
B

X

15 Fixed Assets continued)

(d)

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the intended use of a
property previously held for own use was changed to leasing
purpose. This property with carrying amount of $39,500,000,
being the fair value of the property at the date of change in
use, was transferred from “other properties” to “investment
properties” accordingly. As a result of the transfer, a revaluation
surplus of $16,884,000 on other properties was recognised in
other comprehensive income. After deducting non-controlling
interests of $8,441,000, an amount of $8,443,000 was

recognised in the revaluation reserve.

At 31 March 2012, investment properties comprise iISQUARE,
certain floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre, certain units of
Good Luck Industrial Building, a floor of Euro Trade Centre
and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other properties comprise a floor
of ISQUARE, certain units of an industrial property, a unit of a
commercial property, and two residential properties in Hong

Kong.

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC were
revalued at 31 March 2012 by Vigers Appraisal And Consulting
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers who
have among their staff Fellows of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued, on a market value basis in their
existing states by reference to comparable market transactions
and where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of the net

rental income allowing for reversionary income potential.

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15 BEEEEm)

(Q) WARFEER  AEEYEFORER
BRENPAERE (22—
52,0007t) - REEBEREERD -
AEBNURMEEAEFTENPRAER
HBEREFEA116,000T (ZZF——
4 :158,0007T) °

(h) FEEUELHEERHBBEYE - &
LHRERVNAEMFETF - LB
REBETIHAERESR  BENME
ERREFEE - HE_T——F
A=t HIEFERBERTER
R A B B 2 & 17,233,000 7T
(ZZF——4 :7,983,0007T) °

M2 ERBEEREMTEANE
BRENEERNAENE  HAEDHR
RIEME

KEIETFTT%H%E’J SEMEER
BENRERENRELBENT

s —

15 Fixed Assets continued)

(9)

During the year, there was no addition to office equipment of
the Group financed by new finance lease (2011: $52,000). At
the balance sheet date, the net book value of office equipment
held under finance leases of the Group was $116,000 (2011:
$158,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised
as income in the income statement during the year ended

31 March 2012 were $17,233,000 (2011: $7,983,000).

All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of investment property are classified as

investment property.

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

E3 1
The Group

bNE
The Company

e

$°000
1R Within 1 year 305,816 383,563 3,542 3,224

112855 R After 1 year but within
5 years 255,944 454,357 177 1,684
5F 1% After 5 years 31,034 43,487 = —
592,794 881,407 3,719 4,908
() BEIKH () Pledge of assets
REEABEREAEH  RITEXK At the balance sheet date, fixed assets with carrying value of

T KA
A BR A 18 5 10,016,000,0007C ( =&
——%F 1 9,845,000,0007T ) 1Y ElE &

EVEREIR (2R E24) -

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ &

$10,016,000,000 (2011: $9,845,000,000) were pledged to

secure the bank loan (see note 24).



B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 KRB ATNER 16 Interest in Subsidiaries

AT
The Company

& (FRRAN) Investments, at cost
— JE TR — Unlisted shares 14,363 14,363
— BB LMD — Shares listed in Hong Kong 139,226 139,226
153,589 153,589
B OREEE Less: Impairment losses (14,363) (14,363)
139,226 139,226
JE USSR F0E Amounts due from subsidiaries 138,750 148,581
R R(EEE Less: Impairment losses (33,401) (42,326)
244,575 245,481
EmiHmHE Market value of listed shares 2,706,545 2,826,836
EWMB AR RIES S AR - 28 - WE Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
TERERH - ZRBEEFTER—F AR have no fixed repayment terms. The balances are not expected to be
[g o recovered within one year.
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TR~ R
FRIIBAREF BT -
T B BORRD 19 7 AR -

ERAESN

Name of company
HEERBEBR A

Associated International Hotels

Limited

Sparkland Investments Limited

BHRBRAT]

Harkam Limited

Farish Limited

EAER)ERRA

Metropolitan (International) Limited

Associated International Resorts
Limited

HEARAF]

Diamond Town Limited

Austin Hills Land Sdn. Bhd.

s —

(%)

B>

MR R

[

Place of

incorporation
and operation
Hong Kong

Bk
Hong Kong

Bk
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Y G+

Malaysia

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5

B#BERME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Frit R zR Lt Bl

Proportion of ownership interest

AEEH mANE  ENE
B BE DRER

Group’s held by
the

ERTRARRAFE

Particulars of issued and effective held by

paid up capital holding Company subsidiary

360,000,000 BREEI T2 R 50.01%  46.41% 3.6%

360,000,000 shares of $1 each

2REREE TR 100% 100% -

2 shares of $1 each

2REREE TR 100% - 100%

2 shares of $1 each

REREETT KR 100% 100% -

2 shares of $1 each

1,600,000/ SR E{E5T2 ik 100% 100% -

1,600,000 shares of $5 each

B FREBEI0T 2R 50.01% - 100%

2 shares of $10 each

200,000 BRREE1 702 B 10 50.01% - 100%

200,000 shares of $1 each

21,000,002 R G EE 50.01% - 100%
ST b 3

21,000,002 shares of MYRT1 each

Principal activity

FREMERRERK
Property and

investment holding

RERKR
Investment holding

FRMERRERR
Property and

investment holding

g Rl
In the process of

de-registration

RRME
Property holding

RERK
Investment holding

RRME
Property holding

B &
In the process of

voluntary liquidation
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B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16

KM E A R RV RE = ()

TRIBAREREHBRRFE - B52E
PR R E B - ()

ERRE S

MR LR
ik
Place of
incorporation

Name of company and operation

X

16 Interest in Subsidiaries (continued)

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

(continued)

ERTRARRAE

Particulars of issued and

paid up capital

FrftREzR L Bl

Proportion of ownership interest

Mk
AEFE IEXH

5B HBEAR
B =)
Group’s held by
effective the held by

holding Company subsidiary Principal activity

Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. B2k 35 10,001,285k GREE 50.01% - 99.99% BEEESTGH)
Malaysia i b 3) In the process of
754% B LI R E voluntary liquidation
BRAGTITTZ RN (Note)
10,001,285 shares of MYR1 each
and 754 preference shares of
MYR1 each
Austin Hills View Scn. Bhd. BRAE T REREEFRADTITZRE  50.01% - 100% BFEART
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of
voluntary liquidation
Austin Hills Villas Sdn. Bhd. SRAE EEBRBESRACTITZRG  5001% - 100% BRESZT
Malaysia 2 shares of MYR1 each In the process of

voluntary liquidation

FALAE4EE » Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd.
([AHCRB) AImBKIRELSHE BRITE
THEESRADITITAELR - UEADE8
CHNEELS - ELRERREG LB
HEAARNIEERE  TARERRBAK
RS NM R

N ESFAEL - AMER =T ——F=H=H
TREER  AEENSBAARELSL
EINEEENAR | - AHCRBE IR BFEIE T2
o HFEHAHCRBREE » EFAHE TEMT
MERT  BERBREGREBRAERT
AR R EAHCRBARARR A #zE 2 Ll -
ERE-EMRFRELEDREMEMBE
R A BSEE -

EEERALENRNETHASEL
AHCRBFTH A #EE BT TEX »

Note: Austin Hills Country Resort Bhd. (“AHCRB”) allotted various classes of
preference shares of Malaysian Ringgit 1 each to members of the golf
and recreational club in exchange for their paid-in membership fees
deposits in prior years. These shareholders had the same voting rights as
the existing ordinary shareholders and were entitled to use the facilities
within the golf and recreational club.

Following the completion of the disposal of the properties on 2 March
2011 as set out in note 5, the Group’s golf and recreational club
operation ceased thereafter. Subsequently, AHCRB started the process
of voluntary liquidation. In the event of liquidation of AHCRB’s assets,
the preference shareholders shall be repaid in proportion to the amounts
subscribed and paid-up to AHCRB by the respective shareholders by
way of capital before any other surplus is distributed in accordance with
certain order or priority and subject to certain conditions.

The Directors consider that the dilution effect of the share issued on the
Group’s interest in AHCRB is not material.
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17 AMtHERRR S

BB L MEERES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
(&mAE) at market value

17 Available-for-sale Equity Securities

AEEH
The Group

& — =

5,199

18 FEUWERT » AT & RFAMNR

18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments
rEE PN
The Group The Company

2012

Fr

$°000
FEURBR X Accounts receivable 34,667 47,067 166 204

B RIEARAEE Less: Allowance for bad and

(MFEE18(0)) doubtful debts (note 18(b)) (592) - (15) -
34,075 47,067 151 204
HEFSSEREN Deposits and prepayments 6,585 9,554 233 223
40,660 56,621 384 427

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =



B HERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BN T ‘\
\

18 FEWERF ~ ST & RFEN K@)

(@)

ARER D AT

REEBEREER - BREERYEER
K Ale MEMRANEEERER(E
R RIEIR ) EREEDITIAT -

18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(@) Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts

receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the balance sheet

date is as follows:

rEE b /N
The Group The Company
2012
T
$°000
SR Hp Current 32,247 44,272 - -
B R {E A Less than 1 month past due 1,011 1,469 58 102
BEA1 =316 A 1 to 3 months past due 715 740 50 74
e ERER A B(E A More than 3 months but
BL12M@A less than 12 months
past due 98 576 8| 19
R E12(8 A More than 12 months
past due 4 10 2 9
[ lent-c] Amounts past due 1,828 2,795 151 204
34,075 47,067 151 204

RE—MRESGAERIE - BRER
H—AABI10RE14K » BIEIEHUF
B o AEBEEHREMFBINER
Ff5E28(a) ©

Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

in note 28(a).
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18 FEWERF ~ ST & RFEN K@) 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)
(b) FEWERFUBE (b) Impairment of accounts receivable
KEEARZREFTEES ST ¢ The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

£33 AT
The Group The Company

72011/20104F At 1 April 2011/2010
4A1H = 30 - 30
R,/ (EE) Impairment losses
;}EX{E 518 recognised/(reversed) 592 (30) 15 (30)
3HA31H At 31 March 592 - 15 -
RZE—ZZF=A=+—10 ' £5E At 31 March 2012, the Group’s and the Company’s accounts
R 7R &) A FE M BR R B4 1R 51 1 receivable of $592,000 (2011: Nil) and $15,000 (2011: Nil)
&R E 8 BR B 9 Bl A 592,000 T respectively were individually determined to be impaired.
(ZZF—F : &) R15000T(=F Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
——&F  |) At - EWERORE $592,000 (2011: Nil) and $15,000 (2011: Nil) respectively were
AR EEH D B A592,000t (=& recognised.
——F &) k15007 (=&
——F &)

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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18 FERERT » ST & R FENF @) 18 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

() REBENEWERR (c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
A B s 2 B AR AR B R E Y FE IR The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither
REERER DT ¢ individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

rEE AATH
The Group The Company

KimEAsk 8B RME  Neither past due nor

impaired 32,247 44,272 - -
EEID T E A Less than 1 month past due 1,011 1,469 58 102
BH1Z23(E A 1 to 3 months past due 715 740 50 74
60 BR R 1B 3 (E A More than 3 months but
BLR12(EAR less than 12 months
past due 98 576 41 19
R m12(E A More than 12 months
past due 4 10 2 9
1,828 2,795 151 204
34,075 47,067 151 204
KimHi g8 B R E R B ER 518 Ak Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
HeBEEREENEREREP wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
BB REMNEKERAEER Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
HAREE G R BT R — BT number of independent customers that have a good track
P BEEERE  BIBENATAR record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
BARNEEEXTESANE  mERH believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
RN R R Al 28Uk E - PRARZE of these balances as there has not been a significant change
BULET IR B - in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Annual Report 2011-2012 Eﬁﬁb
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19 BIKFRITER
RZB-——FERTE——F=A=+—0 "
IRITIFEAE AR UER—RIETIRTT
BIRITE R (2BM5E24) o

20 BERIBEZEEY

/ SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2012 and 2011, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 24).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

REE RAF
The Group The Company
2012
Fr
$000
RITEEER Deposits with banks 89,065 864,921 8,955 5,227
RITEHREBES Cash at bank and in hand 38,078 34,230 2,165 1,139
127,143 899,151 11,120 6,366

21 HttEARRETEN

FERTEMESTER Accruals and retention monies

21 Other Payables and Accruals

N
The Company

EE
The Group

M IERHMREE 5K payable for redevelopment work 67,015 87,101 = -

E R TR Other payables and accruals
fEETE H 17,197 59,279 1,467 861
84,212 146,380 1,467 861

PG E L R R B R T B AR N —F B

fit o

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =

All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be settled

within one year.
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
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22

23

2WET &
FTBEAREERARABNERE£BETR
—FRNBEN - MED R 243,478,000 7T
(ZZ——4F :125,343,0007T) F1108,0007T
—ZT——4F :626,00070) W] & BN
— B RIBRIN -

RERBE SR

22 Deposits Received

\

All of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits received are

expected to be settled within one year except for $43,478,000 (2011:
$125,343,000) and $108,000 (2011: $626,000) respectively which are

expected to be settled after more than one year.

23 Provision for Long Service Payments

rEE PN

The Group The Company

T T

$°000 $°000

2011564 /18 At 1 April 2011 1,370 -
REEFHEER Provision made for the year 232 1
201243 A31H At 31 March 2012 1,602 1

REBBBCRBIED) - AEBARK IR
hFHAENE TREMER - ERLER
AR —ENR - BN SRR EMET
RENFE MRBEY  RERARERK
Rl AKEEHMEREETE - K&
B8 H B R A B EEREAI RIS ERD
BER -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged

to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain

circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years

of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on

the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced

by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is

attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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24

ﬁE’_g%‘tﬁl — BIEH
R-ZE——F=ZA=+—H  RBITEZNE
mﬁﬂﬁﬂ?i

24 Bank Loan - Secured

At 31 March 2012, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

AEH
The Group

1F R Within 1 year - 200,000
iEgEEn After1yearbutuithin2years 200000 200000

2F 12 1B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years = 800,000

200,000 1,000,000

200,000 1,200,000

MNZZEXE+AZ-TH  KARAFHKH
BAR — S BBEBREEER QG E—
R 77 57 3 — 17 & ££1,200,000,000 7T HY
BEW® ZRITMERA—HBIEH
Hi15@) N —E——FE=A=+—H
8F [ 18 10,016,000,000 7T ( =& — — 4 :
9,845,000,0007T) K& TEEEERZE —
B AR R Y BRI HEERANS
TEENE —FHHCNEFIERER -
MN-T——F=ZA=Z+—H8 KEEZE
77 & 3 A& 200,000,000 7t ( = F — — 4 :
1,200,000,00007T ) ° =R B A E HRE
BIERZMF - HAREE TR -

ZMEARMRITRERERITRZMB A
AMETHRAEERBRLTBHIREER
T REELA EBE%(E%’QZKE*EE’\J%EE7K

F o WM BARRRZERS - QAR
%DEUE% BREERIMMEERE ZISEI E

EEENAEERE R-T——FR
f**i RA=+t—8  ZMBQRLE
EREFERREER BN -

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5

On 20 October 2006, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with
a bank for banking facilities of up to $1,200,000,000. The banking
facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a first fixed
legal charge over certain fixed assets referred to in note 15(a) with
carrying value of $10,016,000,000 as at 31 March 2012 (2011:
$9,845,000,000) and a first floating charge over certain assets placed
on or used in the redevelopment. At 31 March 2012, the outstanding
bank loan was $200,000,000 (2011: $1,200,000,000). The facilities
have, subject to certain conditions, been extended for two additional

years.

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated balance
sheet ratios and maintenance of capital at certain required levels. If
the subsidiary were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. As at 31 March 2012 and 2011,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been

breached.
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25 FLEMHEEE 25 Obligations under Finance Leases
NZE——F=RA=+—H0 AEENHRE At 31 March 2012, the Group had obligations under finance leases
MERENEREBNAT repayable as follows:

rEE
The Group
2012 2011

REESR RIEHE RIEHEE REHE
NRERE (RELAE EESCET RN NEEEEE

Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
T T T Tt
$°000 $°000 $’000 $'000
1FA Within 1 year 41 41 41 41
1FRE2FER After 1 year but within 2 years 41 41 41 41
2EEBEER After 2 years but within 5 years 38 38 79 79
79 79 120 120
120 120 161 161

B B1EFIESXH  Less: Total future interest expenses
FEE - -
HERAIEMIRE Present value of lease obligations 120 161

26 FEMABUTHE 26 Government Lease Premiums Payable

AEE
The Group

FE BT H(E Government lease premiums payable 2,240 2,284
S BEEREAD E UL Less: Amount due within 1 year included
EETERMIFEA in other payables and accruals
FEfS IR 47) (44)
2,193 2,240
JFETBURT H B F B R IR AR B 2 #4538 LAE E F Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FIEpE(ZZF——F : 5E)FTE - fixed rate of 5% (2011: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬂiiﬁb
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27 BRKf#®E 27 Capital and Reserves
(a) REZARIDHE (@ Movements in components of equity
REEAR A ER ) B EAK RS ) E The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
THEBREHROEER - VEHREE each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
BEEER - ARaRNFIEFRAE in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
&R R AR PR FB D Y B BY S 1B 5 H A the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
ViN/NE] The Company

[N B ME R A
Share Share Retained

capital premium earnings
T T T
$°000 $°000 $°000

2010F481H Balance at 1 April 2010

e 118,683 3,147 280,495 402,325
REFRMK Profit for the year and total
FHERBALE comprehensive income — — 29,826 29,826

#2011£3H831H  Balance at 31 March 2011
%2011§4R1H and 1 April 2011

MR 118,683 3,147 310,321 432,151
KEEZ R K Profit for the year and total

PEMAEEE comprehensive income = = 157,859 157,859
B E—BEFE  Dividends approved in respect

HeERBLE of the previous financial year - - (80,704) (80,704)
BRATBEFE Dividends declared in respect

TR E of the current financial year - — (47,473) (47,473)

M2012%3H31H  Balance at 31 March 2012
HiteR 118,683 3,147 340,003 461,833

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it &4 R A =
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27 BEXRRfFEE@

(b)

TN

27 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(b)

Share capital

2012
Tt
$°000
EE Authorised:
600,000,000/& G E{E0.257T 600,000,000 shares of $0.25 each 150,000 150,000
ERTRAR Issued and fully paid:
474,731 824K AR EI1E0.257T 474,731,824 shares of $0.25 each 118,683 118,683

B fn 758 A B WER T B B IR H IR
g WAIEARAAE LERE K
B —F - HRARBNRHE
E FABRNHZARESER -

EENEENAZE
B aEEERENARIZIEB(AFIE
BIYSEASBIKFTESE ©

ERFERIENTFEEERIEE
MEEHBRBMEOHEELE R
ZBECERRERES - MENR
EEEYMER  EAHBNERZRR
SHEGHREBARRLN © WRHE
NI IRE) ©

AEBEERIIVERFE - LR
1(r) P&k i) 4 B OME & B T sl R
FIELEMER ZREFTERMER

ARBEREERENREERBERGEH
AR AR L EREESFNAARE

ERFTEEFHE - WM FE1(d)PTE
A= D+BZ3§J=E'E¥ °©

BAFREE - ANBARETET
ERIEER T EERBIRMEASKE
1 5% BT 88 2 BN AT 20 I B fré 0%+ 456 0
HBIEE -

The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
The application of the share premium account is governed by

section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to

retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

The exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations in note 1(r).

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale equity securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies in note 1(d).

The capital reserve represents the net increase in the Group’s
share of the undistributable reserve in a subsidiary pursuant
to the issuance of various classes of preference shares by a
subsidiary to preference shareholders.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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27 BEXRR#B@

(d) AHDIREE
RZE—Z—ZF=A=+—H0  RE
EB(ARHEN)ETBIER T EH
BE: R SNCIE Ey ok
% 5160,672,0007C(Z & — —F :
158,2901,0007T) - EEEREE A
BEREEABREZ D RARBRETH
0.20L( = ——% : B&K017L) -
4 3£04,946,000C (= F — — F -
80,704,0007T) (Mi5E12) » BB E
REEBBEREEBNAEREA
f& o

) BEXRERE
$%E%ﬁ§$%$£ﬁ%%%@$

SEBEKEN AR E HAE
%%ﬂJEﬁﬂ *?HMWW%?

BARABERABGREN T
HEERERIRCRERE®R I REA
FRRIA LR

REBTHBRFTMERLEARLEE
BREAEUERMEBKFEEFR
R R EIREF - BEIBEE AR
HRAEBMREDRS T - WEE
EERESEMARERNERE - #HE
ZECFRZIE——F=A=1+—
HIEFE  NREBEMEERBERT

#h °

RNEBE K E BARRY B E AR
&'ﬁ@%%§$ﬁﬁm%&ﬁ@
MEFE K REREERLERE - it
Bl $%l ETERBEBELEER
RBPHERANGEEERBER
ﬁfm%ﬁ@ﬁoﬂ =T——F
ZSA=+—8B AEEANELAERE
& AE1.9%(ZFE——% : 11.8%) -
MBTTEREREBBEITERE
i 203,495,000 0 ( =& — — & ¢
201,919,0007T) °

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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27 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as
calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, was $160,672,000 (2011:
$158,291,000). After the balance sheet date the Directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.20 per share (2011: $0.17
per share), amounting to $94,946,000 (2011: $80,704,000)
(note 12). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at

the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2012
and 2011.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at 31 March
11.8%)
with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan of
$203,495,000 (2011: $201,919,000).

2012, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.9% (2011:
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BREREERDAEBE
AR EREBBET LA R
A¢  FIENERER - AREFEHHE
TR AT A O MRS LR -

B RSB FrESE R R
ZEEHE RIS ER
EEAIT -

AR AR E B AL
REEPCRAEE M

@ FERR
REENEERBREZRE EWRER
o BEECEMEERR  WAT
ETEERATAS RS ERR ©

PEUERFME - HRAEERE N
BE-ELBEENTF Af£EE
ELEREE RS - ZIMERHFE

EPBTEENHRENCSE XA ]
HEFEE S TEEREPEEER
NER P EETEREBEIRT o KK
—REBAERIE - ERERA—
MAI0OKRE14KR - BEAFEUIRF S -
REEGEEENER T BT
B ARKBUEEITH - REEBRRE

Fal4 (2RME22) 1E AW ER TR H

e
AEBYBEANEERARETNIE
Mo TEHEFTREIR G - A KB ATA

ZWEERRELRAEERERTSE
BoREENERE(CHBRRESE
) o AEBEAEBEH-AHAEEL
RRABAESEEERBROEMER -

ﬁ%m&%@ﬁiwﬁﬁmﬁﬁFiﬁé
SHERENEMELERE SR
Mﬁ}mo

X

28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises

in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 22) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company to

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 18.

Annual Report 2011-2012 ﬁﬁb
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BHEREER D AEE®

(b) REVEZE

REBEMBRETEHERERNEST
MREBESFNR  UNBERETER

Hin o MRGERTERNREHE - F
FERITARIRHE R ANEER - U
mRESNRERNRBESTK

TERFAVAREERANRBZIFTESR
REEREERBREERNHGE
BN EIFIR - R ERIRIE A HRITIR
ReRnE(BRAEHONEHIRNE
ERBEREEANERNX(IET
BIRFERF SR RAKRBMAR
FAKRFE X REM SR :

ﬂTian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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28 BIREMREERAABE@® 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) REBESERE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
rEH The Group

2012
BEERR AHAHNE 1ERE, BB1E BB
REE HeRBNE BEBENE  BOWNE BOR5E BiB5E

Balance Total More than More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
o 1 i i e 2
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BT R Other payables and accruals
iR 84,212 84,324 84,324 - - =
BlEIe Deposits received 138,822 138,822 95,344 20,268 21,291 1,919
BEMEAE Obligations under finance leases 120 120 4 4 38 -
FTEH—HHA  Bank loan - secured 200,000 203,031 1,951 201,080 - -
FENETE Government lease premiums
payable 2,193 3,813 - 159 477 3177
425,347 430,110 181,660 221,548 21,806 5,096

EEARR
REE
Balance Total More than More than

sheet contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but

carying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than

amount cash flow on demand PATCES 5 years 5 years
Fr T T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

HiERTR Other payables and accruals

E:ER 146,380 146,380 146,380 - - -
B2 Depostts received 131,327 131,327 5,984 93,502 20,922 1,919
BERERE Obligations under finance leases 161 161 4 4 79 -
SRTER —AEMA  Bank loan - secured 1,200,000 1,216,273 207,470 206,045 802,758 -
FERBME Government lease premiums

payable 2,240 4,131 159 159 417 3,336
1,480,108 1,498,272 360,034 200,747 833,236 5,255
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28 BIREMREERAABHE@ 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(b) REBESERE @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
ViN/NE]| The Company

2012
BESER BRRITR 1R BB1F
REE HEREAR ERE AR BAHR2E
Balance Total More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but
carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000

Hit A& Other payables and accruals

JEEtE A 1,467 1,467 1,467 -
B EIEA Deposits received 1,718 1,718 1,610 108
3,185 3,185 3,077 108

BEBRX 540 , 1AL i1 F
FRmEE BnEEEE R SRS BAR25F
Balance More than
sheet contractual Within 1 year but
carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
H A fERR % Other payables and accruals
JEFTER 861 861 861 -
BETE Deposits received 996 996 370 626

1,857 1,857 1,231 626

4Tian Teck Land Limited X @it & 4R A =
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28 BIEMEERAALEBE®@ 28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)
(c) FIZR[E (c) Interest rate risk
i S ] et Jﬁkﬁﬁi ZRBFIRTE The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.
R ZERRITEREAEREET The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to
imu%ﬂyﬂﬁw o REBEIREBEL cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
R KB AN T ()P © monitored by management is set out in () below.
() FIEHR () Interest rate profile
TEREFINEEBERGEH The following table details the interest rate profile of the
AEBHOEBEEF RN Group’s borrowings at the balance sheet date:
FrEE
The Group
2012 2011
TS ERR A2
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% %
EEEE Fixed rate borrowings:

ELEFAEAIE  Obligations under

finance leases — 120 — 161
FENFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 2,193 5.00 2,240
2,313 2,401
FEMBE: Variable rate
borrowings:
RITER — Bank loan — secured
BHEA 0.98 200,000 0.70 1,200,000
BEHE Total borrowings 202,313 1,202,401

Annual Report 2011-2012 Eﬁﬁb
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FRERREERAAEE@®
() FIZEREPkE @)
iy BUREDIT

RZE——F=A=+—8"
HEtEF R LR L TR25
T ——fF 25)HE . it
FTg Efh o] & A =M T
RNEBERT AR RARE R F
15 Bt iE 1 H149418,0007T
(ZZ——%F : 2,505,0007T) °

R B E D AT DR R
(RRENEEREREERH

) BAKBERR B RE R (R
Ba M) m AN L - s
PIAREREERBREERR
BEBFTETAMELNIR
EREMNEXRERME - AEE
BBt A (FIER B ) e
BRZRZNEZHHF B Hh
MEZCFBELGE - 58
IfRE T ——FHRNE
HEHETT o

d) E¥RK
MRAEEBADH RSB
& E I EEREEROINEER -

(e) EmERER
R EHBAED AR S
B (2B () B M 25 (B
R -

AEBEN ETREGRERBHAR
SABARAR LMHAR - KEH
EERHEEREREAATH L

MEEREENZRENRIIERE
710 W E B ERTE BRI AL BB
HRB -
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28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 25 (2011: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately $418,000 (2011:
$2,505,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments
held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2011.

Currency risk
The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 1(d)).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the
available-for-sale equity investments portfolio have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and are monitored

regularly for performance against expectation.
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28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

C)

Equity price risk (Continued)

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 31 March 2012,
it is estimated that an increase/decrease of 35% (2011: 28%)
in the market value of the Group’s listed investments, with all
other variables held constant, would not affect the Group’s
profit unless there are impairments. The Group’s total equity
would increase/decrease by $1,938,000 (2011: $1,456,000).

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

Fair values
The fair value of each financial instrument is categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to

that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial

instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are

directly or indirectly based on observable market data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not

based on observable market data

Annual Report 2011-2012 fﬁﬁb
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B#BEME Notes to the Financial Statements
(LL8®%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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28 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

()  Fair values (continued)
At 31 March 2012, the only financial instruments of the Group
carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity securities of
$5,537,000 (2011: $5,199,000) listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (see note 17). These instruments fall into Level 1

(2011: Level 1) of the fair value hierarchy as described above.

All other financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2012
and 2011.

29 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$20,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $20,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $30,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s

income statement.



B

B H®ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

(LL8%%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29 EERMNKEF @)

FEAARTEE - AREER SR T XFT I3
BARMES - BI2MD 5IH E R ATFTER
MEEQATES P RABSTE(RAES
srEl]) c GEMBRARFEREEFHEN
7.5%%E14.5% T FH) I BAE L AR o PRt
PN AEEWEFBABSHENEME
£

RAFEER - HOLU A A ERE A &
[ fE S R 5K A 55,0000 (ZF — —4F -
®) W_T——F=A=+—0 K&£H
AHERANESKRERATT(ZE——
£ :9,0007T) °

30 &I
R-TE——F=A=+—HARENMNMXKE
BT TSR R MBS B AEIENNT -

SEIED)

29

30

Contracted for

=M
A

Employee Retirement Benefits (continued)

In prior years, the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia
and Singapore were members of the Employee Provident Fund and
the Central Provident Fund (“the funds”) operated by the respective
local government. The relevant subsidiaries were required to
contribute to the funds at rates ranging from 7.5% to 14.5% based on
the salaries of the employees. The only obligation of the Group to the

above funds was the required contributions at the applicable rate.

During the year, forfeited contributions of $55,000 (2011: Nil) was
utilised to reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised
forfeited contributions of Nil (2011: $9,000) had yet to be applied by
the Group at 31 March 2012.

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

A%
The Group

1,998
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Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2012, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.

Annual Report 2011-2012 Eﬁﬁb
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SR ERMEE Notes to the Financial Statements

Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but
not yet effective for the Year Ended

31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the Group.

FELUT B 2%
BAsR VS AR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(EAGTEADFEIRMER] B Rk 27— At 2B AIEE 25 ] 201267 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements 1 July 2012
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

(CEAVBRELERDE105] 426 P EIRE ] 201351 H1H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(EBIBR E1258 A H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in

LAY

o A il BB

AR ]
other entities

B

(CERPBREERDFEA35RE

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

EBENTE]

(CEAGFTEANDE195 (20115 [ EEEF ]
HKAS 19 (2011), Employee benefits

CEAGETERNE275 (20114 [ B B 53Rk
HKAS 27 (2011), Separate financial statements

(EARPHREENDFNR SR T A

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2013

2013%1A1H
1 January 2013

201391 A1H
1 January 2013

20131 H1H
1 January 2013

20131 H1H
1 January 2013

20151 A1H
1 January 2015
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of

operations and financial position.
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(L% ¥ %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E Results
2012
Fr
$°000
B Turnover
— BEKE — Continuing operation 8,777 9,241 128,053 382,630 461,980
— AR A — Discontinued operation 17,497 16,525 17,246 17,010 -
26,274 25,766 145,299 399,640 461,980
REYEMLEREHE  Profit/(loss) from operations
MR 5K/ (B548)  after valuation changes
in investment properties 473,638 (207,219) 2,805,772 1,067,099 570,303
& AR Finance costs (121) (119) (4,325) (9,175) (2,464)
ERBIBISEA(E548)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 473,517 (207,338) 2,801,447 1,057,924 567,839
FrSfi(GE) Income tax (Note) (50,877) 4,646 (8,747) (8,223) (102,105)
REZFEKE ZAREE Profit/(loss) for the year from
SF L (E5E) continuing operation 422,640 (202,692) 2,792,700 1,049,701 465,734
RERIEE ZKERE Profit/(loss) for the year from
A (E5E) discontinued operation (1,730) (1,788) 5,366 202,494 =
REERF,(B5H8)  Profit/(loss) for the year 420,910 (204,480) 2,798,066 1,252,195 465,734
THIA LR : Attributable to:
NEETRRER Equity shareholder of the
Company 221,226 (102,130) 1,413,252 641,078 250,901
E Non-controlling interests 199,684 (102,350) 1,384,814 611,117 214,833
420,910 (204,480) 2,798,066 1,252,195 465,734

Annual Report 2011-2012 Eﬁﬁb
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EFEFHEME Five Year Financial Summary
(LB ¥ 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEEREGE Assets and Liabilities

2012
T
$°000
FEE Fixed assets 5,993,928 6,342,832 9,360,182 10,176,725 10,408,017

Eﬁﬂ%ﬁ%’?ﬁﬁ/ Alf  Other investments in securities/

HERERREES available-for-sale equity
securities 3,621 1,369 2,970 5,199 5,537
EERIBEE (5E) Deferred tax assets (Note) 1,565 16,179 8,074 242 —
MENEEFE Net current assets 404,490 245,806 601,804 979,777 179,475
6,403,604 6,606,186 9,973,030 11,161,943 10,593,029
IRITER — BEM Bank loan — secured (130,000) (568,000)  (1,105,000)  (1,000,000) (200,000)
FET AT HO (B Government lease premiums
payable (2,367) (2,327) (2,284) (2,240) (2,193)
A e Obligations under finance leases (70) — (114) (120) (79)
RERIEEREGEH Deferred tax liabilities (Note) (749,873) (768) 819 (1,001) (26,402)
HtbB e’ Other financial liabilities @ @) - - -
BERE NET ASSETS 5521,292 6,035,089 8,864,813 10,158,582 10,364,355
AR Share capital 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683 118,683
1 Reserves 2,716,323 2,981,528 4,411,319 5,074,304 5,196,629
2,835,006 3,100,211 4,530,002 5,192,987 5,315,312
FERBRRER Non-controlling interests 2,686,286 2,934,878 4,334,811 4,965,595 5,049,043
B TOTAL EQUITY 5,521,292 6,035,089 8,864,813 10,158,582 10,364,355
i REEZE——F=A=+T—HLEFE " $¢@T§ Note: During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group early adopted the

FRAT(EAGTREADE12RPAEH IN0ESF
ﬁﬁam*ﬁﬁi?ﬁﬂﬁFﬁ)\ﬁEB’U&ﬁ%%&&ifE/ﬁf
BRSEMEMEENELHA - ARECEPRAEA
<%\5"$@éﬁ"7§ﬁw>%12?f§ ERTMELMBREE -
%iﬁﬁfgghiﬁ —ZFEMA - BT
mmHERE— fi A=t RIEFENEFE
HHE - Eﬂﬁéi%&fg%i/\imﬂ*EZH‘ R E
MEFIL AT ARBTF I ARER

amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes, in respect of the recognition of
deferred tax on certain investment properties carried at fair value and non-
depreciable assets measured using the revaluation model. The change in policy
arising from the amendments to HKAS 12 has been applied retrospectively by
restating the opening balances at 1 April 2009 and 2010, with consequential
adjustments to the figures for the year ended 31 March 2010. Figures in
financial years before 1 April 2008 have not been restated as it is not practicable
to do so.

4Tian Teck Land Limited {2t &5 R 2\ 5
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